
AGENDA 
HANOVER CITY COUNCIL 

NOVEMBER 19, 2019 
MAYOR 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN 
 
COUNCIL 
DOUGLAS HAMMERSENG 
KEN WARPULA 
JIM ZAJICEK 
MARYANN HALLSTEIN 
 
1. Call to Order Regular City Council Work Session: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approve Minutes of November 4, 2019 City Council Meeting (4) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (7) 

 Claims  $    31,842.46 
 Payroll   $      9,531.32 
 P/R taxes & Exp. $      3,448.28 
 Other Claims  $      2,602.32 
 Total Claims     $  147,424.38 

c. Res No 11-19-19-99 – Approving 2019 Chip Seal Project Final Pay Voucher (38) 
 

4. Fehn Mining IUP Application – 15th St. NE Improvements (40) 
 

5. Hanover Historical Society – Historic Bridge Lighting Donation 
 

6. Hanover Historical Society – Carriage Storage Request 
 

7. Gambling Proceeds 
 

8. Res No 11-19-19-100 – Approving Revised WSB Proposal 2020 Pavement Mgmt Services (45) 
 

9. Cemetery Policy Review (64) 
 

10. 2020 Fee Schedule – Draft 1 (80) 
 

11. 2020 Final Budget – Draft 1 (87) 
 

12. Reports 
 

13. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Date:  November 14, 2019 
 
Re:  Review of November 19, 2019 City Council Work Session Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approve Minutes of November 4, 2019 City Council Meeting (4) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (7) 

 Claims  $    31,842.46 
 Payroll   $      9,531.32 
 P/R taxes & Exp. $      3,448.28 
 Other Claims  $      2,602.32 
 Total Claims     $  147,424.38 

c. Res No 11-19-19-99 – Approving 2019 Chip Seal Project Final Pay Voucher (38) 
 

4. Fehn Mining IUP Application – 15th St. NE Improvements (40) 
Enclosed is a memo from City Planner Nash.  Nash will also be present to answer any questions. 
 

5. Hanover Historical Society – Historic Bridge Lighting Donation 
Representatives from the Hanover Historical Society have been working with a local resident on a 
project to donate updated lighting form the Historic Bridge.  The Hanover Park Board has supported 
the donation with the condition that a letter is received from the State Historic Preservation Office 
noting that the proposed project would not remove the structure from the historic register.  The 
Hanover Historical Society has indicated they have received this letter and seek to provide an update 
and have a discussion with Council on the project. 
 

6. Hanover Historical Society – Carriage Storage Request 
A representative from the Hanover Historical Society will be present to request storage space in the 
City Hall garage for their carriage. 
 

7. Gambling Proceeds 
The Hanover Lions Club and the Hanover Athletic Association have been encouraged to attend the 
meeting as the City Council discusses the 10% Gambling Proceeds from lawful gambling and the best 
use of those funds. 
 
 
 



8. Res No 11-19-19-100 – Approving Revised WSB Proposal 2020 Pavement Mgmt Services (45) 
Enclosed is a resolution approving a revised proposal submitted by WSB to perform engineering 
services for the 2020 pavement management project.  Included with the resolution is the pavement 
analysis report that was prepared for the project.  City Engineer Messner will be present to explain 
the report and answer any questions related to the proposal. 
 

9. Cemetery Policy Review (64) 
Enclosed is the draft policy for further discussion.  Also included for you benefit are examples of what 
a plaque would look like to install on the niche door. 
 

10. 2020 Fee Schedule – Draft 1 (80) 
Enclosed is the first draft of the 2020 Fee Schedule.  Items to review are columbarium pricing, 
SAC/WAC charges, water meter charges and utility rates. 
 

11. 2020 Final Budget – Draft 1 (87) 
Enclosed is a memo and the first draft of the 2020 Final Budget.  Minimal changes have been made 
from the preliminary budget adoption. 
 

12. Reports 
 
13. Adjournment 



CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NOVEMBER 4, 2019 – DRAFT MINUTES 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Monday, November 4, 2019, to order at 7:00 pm. 
Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Ken Warpula, Doug Hammerseng, Jim Zajicek and 
MaryAnn Hallstein.  Also present were City Attorney Jay Squires, City Engineer Nick Preisler, City 
Administrator Brian Hagen, and Accountant / Deputy Clerk Jackie Heinz.  Guests included Dean and 
Linda Eckard. 
 
Approval of Agenda: 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve the agenda, seconded by Warpula.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Hallstein stated she didn’t second the motion on the consent agenda at the 10-15-19 Meeting. 
Hammerseng stated a typo on Resolution No 11-04-19-92. 
Kauffman inquired on the hours of the assistant election judge position. 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Warpula. 

a. Approve Minutes of October 15, 2019 City Council Work Session Meeting 
b. Approve Minutes of October 22, 2019 Joint Council & Park Board Meeting 
c. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $ 286,060.07 
 Payroll   $     9,531.32 
 P/R taxes & Exp $     3,448.28 
 Other Claims  $     2,602.32 
 Total Claims     $ 301,641.99 

d. Res No 11-04-19-89 – Approving Hire of Seasonal Snow Plow Driver 
e. Res No 11-04-19-90 – Approving Seasonal Election Assistant Position 
f. Res No 11-04-19-91 – Approving Temporary Intoxicating Liquor License 
g. Res No 11-04-19-92 – Recognizing Nathan Wiley Resignation from Hanover Fire Dept. 
h. Res No 11-04-19-93 – Appointing Election Judges 
i. Res No 11-04-19-97 – Appointing Keith Curtis to the Hanover Fire Department 
j. Res No 11-04-19-98 – Certifying Special Assessments 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum: 

Dean & Linda Eckard 
Linda Eckard from the Hanover Lions stated she is inquiring about the 10% of net profits gambling 
proceeds donated to the City.  L. Eckard is inquiring how the money is distributed, how people can ask 
for a donation and feels the City should let the public know the funds are available via the City newsletter 
and website.  L. Eckard further stated the Hanover Lions normally donate $4,000 - $5,000 to the food 
shelf for the upcoming Holidays, however since Chops has been closed they have no funds.  Hagen stated 
MN statute states the gambling proceeds can be used to help pay for Park Board Events and kids / youth 
activities.  Hagen further stated when the ordinance was adopted, the gambling proceeds were to fund 
park board events.  Hagen stated there is currently $17,000 in the gambling fund, $10,000 of that will be 

4



used for the 2020 Park Board events.  L. Eckard stated the Hanover Lions participate to donate to people 
when they need help.  She is offended the money is being used strictly for the Park Board events.  Hallstein 
stated the City is not allowed to ask for donations, the gambling fund is a way to have steady income.  L. 
Eckard stated the funds could be used for the purchase of fire prevention materials, there should be a 
process and the public made aware.  Hagen stated we can assume there will be $20,000 in the gambling 
fund by the end of the year, there are roughly $10,000 in Park Board expenses for 2020 leaving a one year 
cushion.  Kauffman inquired what the other 90% of the gambling income is used for.  D. Eckard stated 
Girl Scouts, Boy Scouts and Food Shelf.  L. Eckard stated of the 1 Million gross that is brought in, there 
is only $40,000 left to give.  Kauffman inquired if the food shelf donation is a one time donation during 
the year.  L. Eckard stated asking for a donation right now, it is an organization they feel strongly in 
helping out this time of year.  Squires stated the gambling proceeds can be used for charitable contributions 
as well as recreational facilities and activities.  Hallstein stated we are never sure how much will come in, 
the City can now fund Park Board events.  Kauffman stated in years past there was no money budgeted 
for parks, we have been slowly fixing that. 
 
Public Hearings: 
None 
 
Unfinished Business: 

Res No 11-04-19-94 – Adopting Fire Department Standard Operating Guidelines 
Hagen stated the “one drink” has been clarified to state one 12 oz. beer, 5 oz. of wine or 1.5 oz. of distilled 
spirits.  Discussion continued about a regular EMT position and use of logo. 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve Res No 11-04-19-94, seconded by Zajicek.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 

Res No 11-04-19-95 – Approving Amendment to City Policies 
Hagen stated the changes reflect the addition of the Columbarium.  Kauffman inquired if employees 
working 30 hours must receive benefits.  Squires clarified health or other benefits.  Hagen stated medical, 
dental and HSA fall under the employer paid benefits to a certain allotment, LTD and STD are City paid.  
Squires stated he could check for legal obligations.  Hammerseng inquired about the cost of living index.  
Hagen stated he would look into and bring back to Council.  Hammerseng inquired if the doors on the 
Columbarium will have plaques or be engraved.  Zajicek inquired if plaques will tarnish or fade.  Hagen 
stated plaques or engraving will be decided at the next meeting, along with pricing.  Squires stated to have 
limits, or you may get graphics you don’t want.   
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve Res No 11-04-19-95 with the Columbarium portion removed for 
further discussion, seconded by Kauffman.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
New Business: 

Res No 11-04-19-96 – Approving WSB Proposal 2020 Pavement Management Services 
Preisler stated the proposal for the 2020 pavement improvement project includes Whitetail Drive and 
Whitetail Lane near Rogers / Corcoran.  Preisler further stated a survey and coring is planned to be 
completed in November, design through the winter, bid in February, receive bids in March and begin work 
in May or June.  Hammerseng inquired if the project still needs to be completed.  Preisler stated yes, future 
projects were updated this summer.  Hammerseng inquired how WSB’s fee of $66,000 compares to other 
projects.  Hagen stated the price is in line, cost was $96,000 on the last project.  Hagen further stated in 
the current CIP funding plan, there is $350,000 budgeted for the 2020 project, leaving $96,000 at the end 

5



of the year.  Discussion continued around the amount of the engineering fees, City value received, 
watching the contractor on site, inspections, breakdown of fees and low bid acceptance.   
 
MOTION by Warpula to RFP for an engineering company, motion dies because of lack of second. 
 
Hallstein inquired about the RFP process.  Squires stated the league has RFP samples to use.  Hallstein 
inquired if an RFP would delay the timing of the project.  Kauffman stated an RFP would be a good 
exercise to see where we’re at.  Hallstein inquired if the sampling portion of the bid could be approved 
and bid the rest.  Preisler stated the coring is needed to help evaluate the other numbers in the bid.  Warpula 
inquired if the coring information belongs to the City.  Preisler stated yes, the City owns the information. 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve Task #2 Pavement Analysis / Coring and table Tasks #1, 3-6 on 
Res No 11-04-19-96, seconded by Zajicek.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Reports 

Hammerseng 
• At the Planning Commission meeting last Monday there was constructive feedback on the 

Mahler Pit, the item was tabled until better detailed information is available regarding truck 
noise, road conditions, walking path, 15th Street turn lanes, IUP terms and extensions.   

Heinz 
• Reminder to vote for the school board election taking place on Tuesday. 

Hagen 
• Presented a picture from a property on 3rd street in 2016 where the asphalt was higher than 

the driveway, 4 concrete panels were replaced, now there is heaving taking place.  Council 
Consensus to get an estimate for repairs. 

Adjournment 
MOTION by Kauffman to adjourn at 9:00 pm, seconded by Warpula.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
    
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
       
___________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 

6



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 11/14/19 3:53 PM
Page 1

Current Period: November 2019

Payments Batch 111919 PAY $131,842.46

ADVANTAGE SIGNS & GRAPHICS  Refer 2839
Cash Payment $23.33No Parking Here to Corner Sign - Qty 1E 100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials
Invoice 40340 10/29/2019
Cash Payment $23.32No Parking from Corner to Driveway Sign - Qty 1E 100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials
Invoice 40340 10/29/2019

$46.65TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

Allied Blacktop Company  Refer 2829
Cash Payment $58,736.202019 Street Seal Coat & Fog Seal - Bid AmountE 418-43121-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 4460 10/22/2019
Cash Payment $21,764.502019 Street Seal Coat & Fog Seal - Additional 

Billing
E 418-43121-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 4460 10/22/2019
$80,500.70TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

BIFFS INC. Ck# 002808E 11/19/2019Refer 2813
Cash Payment $99.00Pheasant Run Park Mini Biff Service 10/09/19 - 

11/05/19
E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment

Invoice W742427 11/6/2019
Cash Payment $99.00EagleView Park Mini Biff Service 10/09/19 - 

11/05/19
E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment

Invoice W742428 11/6/2019
Cash Payment $99.00Mallard Park Mini Biff Service 10/09/19 - 

11/05/19
E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment

Invoice W742429 11/6/2019
Cash Payment $99.00Cardinal Circle Park Mini Biff Service 10/09/19 - 

11/05/19
E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment

Invoice W742430 11/6/2019
$396.00TotalTransaction Date 11/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/13/2019

Buffalo Girls HS Soccer Bstrs  Refer 2809
Cash Payment $200.00Hall Damage Deposit Release - 11/10/19 EventE 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 11/12/2019

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 11/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/13/2019

CARGILL, INCORPORATED  Refer 2832
Cash Payment $1,978.31Ice Control Salt - 24.56 Ton @ 80.55 per TonE 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 2905051580 10/29/2019
Cash Payment $1,996.03Ice Control Salt - 24.78 Ton @ 80.55 per TonE 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 2905066126 11/4/2019
Cash Payment $1,988.78Ice Control Salt - 24.69 Ton @ 80.55 per TonE 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 2905073359 11/8/2019

$5,963.12TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHREDE  Refer 2817
Cash Payment $26.16Legal Support / Work - October 2019E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees
Invoice 10/31/2019

$26.16TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

CENTERPOINT ENERGY  Refer 2816
Cash Payment $115.09City Hall Gas Utilities: 9/27/19 - 10/28/19E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities
Invoice 10/30/2019

7



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 11/14/19 3:53 PM
Page 2

Current Period: November 2019

Cash Payment $193.05PW Building Gas Utilities: 9/27/19 - 10/28/19E 100-43000-383 Gas Utilities
Invoice 10/30/2019
Cash Payment $54.97Fire Station Gas Utilties: 9/27/19 - 10/28/19E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities
Invoice 10/30/2019

$363.11TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

CENTURY LINK  Refer 2827
Cash Payment $40.59Fire Station Landline - 10/28/19 - 11/27/19E 100-42280-321 Telephone
Invoice 10/28/2019

$40.59TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

CITY OF ST. MICHAEL Ck# 002809E 11/19/2019Refer 2819
Cash Payment $5,045.00SAC Fee - 10715 Settlers LaneE 602-49455-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice

$5,045.00TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

COLLABORATIVE PLANNING LLC Ck# 002810E 11/19/2019Refer 2823
Cash Payment $2,163.00General Planning: October 2019E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2019-189 11/3/2019
Cash Payment $25.75JP Brooks - PUD: October 2019

Project 208265
E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-190 11/3/2019
Cash Payment $25.75Fehn Companies - EAW: October 2019

Project 208262
E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-191 11/3/2019
Cash Payment $3,270.25Fehn Companies - IUP Expansion: October 

2019
Project 208263

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-192 11/3/2019
Cash Payment $154.50CRHW 3rd Addition - Developers Agreement: 

October 2019
E 823-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-193 11/3/2019
Cash Payment $77.25CRHW 4th Addition - Developers Agreement: 

October 2019
E 828-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-194 11/3/2019
Cash Payment $618.00JW Family Holdings / River Town Villas - Final 

Plat: October 2019
Project 208258

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2019-195 11/3/2019
$6,334.50TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

COTTENS, INC.  Refer 2830
Cash Payment $12.90Tanker: Light BulbsE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 194227 10/22/2019
Cash Payment $29.94GreaseE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 192570 10/22/2019

$42.84TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

FINKEN WATER SOLUTIONS  Refer 2828
Cash Payment $9.50Cook & Cold Rental Cooler - November 2019E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1172083 11/1/2019

$9.50TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

Gradys Ace Hardware  Refer 2837
Cash Payment $135.95Sharpening Wheel for Chain SawsE 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 17866 10/16/2019

$135.95TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

GREEN HOMES OF MN  Refer 2814

8



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 11/14/19 3:53 PM
Page 3

Current Period: November 2019

Cash Payment $2,000.00Erosion Control Escrow Release - 9848 Jordan 
Avenue NE

E 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 11/7/2019
Cash Payment $2,000.00Landscaping Escrow Release - 9848 Jordan 

Avenue NE
E 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 11/7/2019
Cash Payment $1,000.00Infrastructure Escrow Release - 9848 Jordan 

Avenue NE
E 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 11/7/2019
$5,000.00TotalTransaction Date 11/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/13/2019

HARDWARE HANK  Refer 2833
Cash Payment $15.80Irrigation Blow Out FittingsE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1592354 10/11/2019
Cash Payment $1.79Plug Flat Handle 2 Wire BrownE 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1593219 10/15/2019
Cash Payment $5.38Pheasant Park Gazebo: Roof Nails, Roof 

Cement
E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 1593219 10/15/2019
Cash Payment $17.09Trailer TarpE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 1595102 10/25/2019
Cash Payment $4.98Settlers Park: AntifreezeE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1595820 10/28/2019
Cash Payment $6.27Hose ClampsE 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1590561 10/1/2019
Cash Payment $8.08Pheasant Run Park Gazebos: StaplesE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1594830 10/23/2019
Cash Payment $9.88Hall Updating: Paint RollersE 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1595882 10/29/2019

$69.27TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

HEIMAN FIRE EQUIPMENT  Refer 2825
Cash Payment $76.00Suspender V-Force Belted 54" Red w/ Black 

Padding
E 100-42220-260 Uniforms

Invoice 0881952-IN 8/8/2019
Cash Payment -$20.63Fix Incorrect Billing on Invoice #0881952-INE 100-42220-260 Uniforms
Invoice 0103578-CM 8/22/2019

$55.37TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

JOINT POWERS WATER BOARD  Refer 2820
Cash Payment $2,001.00WAC Fee - 10715 Settlers LaneE 601-49410-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice

$2,001.00TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

MENARDS - BUFFALO  Refer 2840
Cash Payment $208.86Hall Updating: Scrapers, Builders Paper, PaintE 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 09817 10/30/2019
Cash Payment $107.4048" Driveway Markers - Qty 60E 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 10170 11/5/2019
Cash Payment -$94.71Hall Updating: Return Wall Base and Wall Base 

Adhesive
E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 10298 11/7/2019

9



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 11/14/19 3:53 PM
Page 4

Current Period: November 2019

Cash Payment $27.97Vinegar for Hall Dishwasher, Blinds for Jackie's 
Office

E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 10301 11/7/2019
Cash Payment $21.97ShovelE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 10302 11/7/2019

$271.49TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

MID MINNESOTA CONCRETE  Refer 2834
Cash Payment $300.00Public Works Bunker Pad: 4 Ft. Concrete 

Blocks - Qty 12
E 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 21571 10/17/2019
Cash Payment $600.00Public Works Bunker Pad: 4 Ft. Concrete 

Blocks - Qty 24
E 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 21623 10/21/2019
$900.00TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

MN PEIP  Refer 2812
Cash Payment $3,737.22Medical & Dental Premiums - December 2019G 100-21706 Medical/Dental Ins
Invoice 894425 11/10/2019
Cash Payment $55.72Life Insurance - December 2019G 100-21707 Life Ins
Invoice 894425 11/10/2019

$3,792.94TotalTransaction Date 11/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/13/2019

Munoz, Nelly  Refer 2808
Cash Payment $200.00Hall Damage Deposit Release - 11/9/19 EventE 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 11/12/2019

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 11/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/13/2019

Muta, Bahelanya  Refer 2822
Cash Payment $200.00Hall Damage Deposit Release - 11/2/19 EventE 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 11/4/2019
Cash Payment $150.00Event Change to No Alcohol - Refund for 

Difference in Price
R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue

Invoice 11/4/2019
$350.00TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

PLUNKETTS  Refer 2821
Cash Payment $84.24General Pest ControlE 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 6465654 10/30/2019

$84.24TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

RUPP ANDERSON SQUIRES & WA  Refer 2811
Cash Payment $129.50David & AuriAnna Mooers - Application 

Variance: September 2019
Project 208259

E 818-41610-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 9973 11/6/2019
Cash Payment $300.00City Council and Board / Commission Meetings: 

September 2019
E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 9973 11/6/2019
Cash Payment $74.00846 Meander Road Nuisance Abatement: 

September 2019
E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees

Invoice 9973 11/6/2019
Cash Payment $143.50CRHW 3rd Addition - Developers Agreement: 

September 2019
E 823-41610-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 9973 11/6/2019

10



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 11/14/19 3:53 PM
Page 5

Current Period: November 2019

Cash Payment $533.00JW Family Holdings / River Town villas - Final 
Plat: September 2019

Project 208258

E 818-41610-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 9973 11/6/2019
Cash Payment $3.60Photocopies: September 2019E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees
Invoice 9973 11/6/2019

$1,183.60TotalTransaction Date 11/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/13/2019

RUSSELL SECURITY RESOURCE I Ck# 002811E 11/19/2019Refer 2835
Cash Payment $262.00Settlers Park Shelter: Electric Strike and Plate 

Kit for Mens Bathroom
E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice A36039 10/31/2019
$262.00TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

THE HARTFORD  Refer 2824
Cash Payment $201.27STD & LTD - November 2019G 100-21707 Life Ins
Invoice 721267603877

$201.27TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERICA  Refer 2815
Cash Payment $4,898.25Sewer Services - December 2019E 602-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 90216338 11/15/2019
Cash Payment $3,585.83Water Services - December 2019E 601-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 90216338 11/15/2019

$8,484.08TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

VERIZON  Refer 2826
Cash Payment $50.84iPad Data Plan - 10/03/19 - 11/02/19E 100-42280-321 Telephone
Invoice 9841347540 11/2/2019

$50.84TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

VONCO II, LLC  Refer 2836
Cash Payment $80.61Pheasant Park Gazebos: Shingle DisposalE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 52686 10/27/2019

$80.61TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

WESTSIDE WHOLESALE TIRE & S Ck# 002812E 11/19/2019Refer 2838
Cash Payment $30.00Bobcat: Tire RepairE 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 847514 11/8/2019

$30.00TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TREA  Refer 2810
Cash Payment $9,064.17WC Patrol Services - November 2019E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice November19 10/31/2019

$9,064.17TotalTransaction Date 11/13/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/13/2019

WRIGHT COUNTY JOURNAL PRES  Refer 2818
Cash Payment $35.36PHN: Fehn Companies 2019 IUP Mining 

Expansion
E 818-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishing

Invoice 10/31/2019
Cash Payment $102.84Maintenance Worker AdE 100-41970-341 Employment
Invoice 10/31/2019

$138.20TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

ZEP SALES & SERVICE  Refer 2831

11



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 11/14/19 3:53 PM
Page 6

Current Period: November 2019

Cash Payment $519.26Toilet Paper, 43x60 Black Bag 2.0 ML, Hand 
Soap, Wave 3 Blue Sky Screen

E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE

Invoice 9004668672 10/25/2019
$519.26TotalTransaction Date 11/14/2019 Cash 10100Due 11/14/2019

Pre-Written Check $12,067.50
Checks to be Generated by the Computer $119,774.96

Total $131,842.46

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

100 GENERAL FUND $25,798.82
418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $80,500.70
601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $5,586.83
602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $9,943.25
811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $2,000.00
815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $2,000.00
817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $1,000.00
818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $4,637.61
823 CROW RVR HTS WEST 3RD / BACKES $298.00
828 CROW RVR HTS 4TH DEVEL AGRMT $77.25

$131,842.46

12



*Check Summary Register©

CITY OF HANOVER 11/14/19 3:59 PM
Page 1

 

Name Check Date Check Amt

10100   Cash

2808e BIFFS INC. 11/19/2019 $396.00 Pheasant Run Park Mini Biff Service 10/09/19 -
2809e CITY OF ST. MICHAEL 11/19/2019 $5,045.00 SAC Fee - 10715 Settlers Lane
2810e Collaborative Planning LLC 11/19/2019 $6,334.50 General Planning: October 2019
2811e RUSSELL SECURITY RESOURC 11/19/2019 $262.00 Settlers Park Shelter: Electric Strike and Plate 
2812e WESTSIDE WHOLESALE TIRE & 11/19/2019 $30.00 Bobcat: Tire Repair
34623 ADVANTAGE SIGNS & GRAPHIC 11/14/2019 $46.65 No Parking Here to Corner Sign - Qty 1
34624 Allied Blacktop Company 11/14/2019 $80,500.70 2019 Street Seal Coat & Fog Seal - Bid Amoun
34625 Buffalo Girls HS Soccer Bstrs 11/14/2019 $200.00 Hall Damage Deposit Release - 11/10/19 Even
34626 CARGILL, INCORPORATED 11/14/2019 $5,963.12 Ice Control Salt - 24.56 Ton @ 80.55 per Ton
34627 CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHRED 11/14/2019 $26.16 Legal Support / Work - October 2019
34628 CENTERPOINT ENERGY 11/14/2019 $363.11 City Hall Gas Utilities: 9/27/19 - 10/28/19
34629 CENTURY LINK 11/14/2019 $40.59 Fire Station Landline - 10/28/19 - 11/27/19
34630 COTTENS, INC. 11/14/2019 $42.84 Tanker: Light Bulbs
34631 FINKEN WATER SOLUTIONS 11/14/2019 $9.50 Cook & Cold Rental Cooler - November 2019
34632 Gradys Ace Hardware 11/14/2019 $135.95 Sharpening Wheel for Chain Saws
34633 GREEN HOMES OF MN 11/14/2019 $5,000.00 Erosion Control Escrow Release - 9848 Jordan
34634 HARDWARE HANK 11/14/2019 $69.27 Irrigation Blow Out Fittings
34635 HEIMAN FIRE EQUIPMENT 11/14/2019 $55.37 Suspender V-Force Belted 54" Red w/ Black P
34636 JOINT POWERS WATER BOARD 11/14/2019 $2,001.00 WAC Fee - 10715 Settlers Lane
34637 MENARDS - BUFFALO 11/14/2019 $271.49 Hall Updating: Scrapers, Builders Paper, Paint
34638 MID MINNESOTA CONCRETE 11/14/2019 $900.00 Public Works Bunker Pad: 4 Ft. Concrete Bloc
34639 MN PEIP 11/14/2019 $3,792.94 Medical & Dental Premiums - December 2019
34640 Munoz, Nelly 11/14/2019 $200.00 Hall Damage Deposit Release - 11/9/19 Event
34641 Muta, Bahelanya 11/14/2019 $350.00 Hall Damage Deposit Release - 11/2/19 Event
34642 PLUNKETTS 11/14/2019 $84.24 General Pest Control
34643 RUPP ANDERSON SQUIRES & W 11/14/2019 $1,183.60 David & AuriAnna Mooers - Application Varianc
34644 THE HARTFORD 11/14/2019 $201.27 STD & LTD - November 2019
34645 VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERIC 11/14/2019 $8,484.08 Sewer Services - December 2019
34646 VERIZON 11/14/2019 $50.84 iPad Data Plan - 10/03/19 - 11/02/19
34647 VONCO II, LLC 11/14/2019 $80.61 Pheasant Park Gazebos: Shingle Disposal
34648 WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TRE 11/14/2019 $9,064.17 WC Patrol Services - November 2019
34649 WRIGHT COUNTY JOURNAL PR 11/14/2019 $138.20 PHN: Fehn Companies 2019 IUP Mining Expa
34650 ZEP SALES & SERVICE 11/14/2019 $519.26 Toilet Paper, 43x60 Black Bag 2.0 ML, Hand S

Total Checks $131,842.46

FILTER: (([Act Year]='2019' and [period] in (11))) and (Source in ('111919 PAY'))

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



11/14/19 4:00 PM

Cash Balances

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

November 2019

Fund
Begin
Month

GL Debits
Month

GL Credits
Month Balance

100 GENERAL FUND $592,632.13 $14,365.58 $111,874.61 $495,123.10

107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $20,741.97 $0.00 $0.00 $20,741.97

201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $118,184.63 $0.00 $35.00 $118,149.63

205 EDA BUSINESS INCENTIVE FUND $59,138.22 $2,295.35 $0.00 $61,433.57

311 2008A GO CIP REFUNDING BOND $64,148.56 $0.00 $0.00 $64,148.56

312 2009A GO IMP REFUNDING BOND $13,521.23 $0.00 $0.00 $13,521.23

314 2011A GO IMP CROSSOVER REF BD $559,070.38 $0.00 $156,012.50 $403,057.88

315 2016A GO CIP BOND $46,606.74 $0.00 $0.00 $46,606.74

401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $718,516.45 $0.00 $7,210.00 $711,306.45

402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $80,238.41 $0.00 $0.00 $80,238.41

403 FIRE DEPT CAPITAL FUND $258,551.96 $0.00 $0.00 $258,551.96

404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

405 PARK DEDICATION FEE $117,260.00 $0.00 $0.00 $117,260.00

406 GAMBLING PROCEEDS $17,291.66 $0.00 $0.00 $17,291.66

407 TIF REDEV DIST #1 $11,130.86 $0.00 $0.00 $11,130.86

409 MAHLER PIT - 15TH ST IMP FUND $94,832.55 $0.00 $0.00 $94,832.55

411 FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

417 EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND $139,579.00 $0.00 $0.00 $139,579.00

418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $190,192.25 $0.00 $80,500.70 $109,691.55

601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $944,034.82 $14,621.49 $5,586.83 $953,069.48

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $322,086.72 $31,663.29 $9,943.25 $343,806.76

603 STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $161,174.04 $2,974.21 $3,243.57 $160,904.68

611 WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $215,438.00 $0.00 $0.00 $215,438.00

612 SEWER CAPITAL IMP FUND $2,100,820.34 $0.00 $0.00 $2,100,820.34

613 STORM WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $680,728.60 $0.00 $0.00 $680,728.60

701 RIVER ROAD CEMETERY $35,981.74 $0.00 $0.00 $35,981.74

811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $40,123.53 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $36,123.53

815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $40,000.00 $4,000.00 $8,000.00 $36,000.00

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $18,000.00 $11,000.00 $4,000.00 $25,000.00

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $27,648.80 $835.70 $7,982.11 $20,502.39

820 BRIDGES TOWNHOMES ESC FUND $3,719.44 $0.00 $0.00 $3,719.44

823 CROW RVR HTS WEST 3RD / BACKES $4,471.01 $0.00 $1,497.00 $2,974.01

825 CROW RVR HTS FUT WEST PLAT/PUD $7,069.56 $0.00 $0.00 $7,069.56

826 CROW RVR HTS 4TH ADD FINL PLAT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

827 HANOVER COVE PRELIMINARY PLAT $30,128.31 $0.00 $30,128.31 $0.00

828 CROW RVR HTS 4TH DEVEL AGRMT $103,713.25 $0.00 $16,129.50 $87,583.75

900 INTEREST $48,200.50 $0.00 $0.00 $48,200.50

$7,884,975.66 $85,755.62 $450,143.38 $7,520,587.90

29



11/14/19 4:01 PM

Revenue Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

November
2019 Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000 Property Taxes - General $0.00 $553,428.66 $1,019,659.00 $466,230.34 54.28%

TAXES R 100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $50,789.00 $101,578.00 $50,789.00 50.00%

TAXES R 100-31800 Franchise Fees $3,662.49 $10,938.00 $15,000.00 $4,062.00 72.92%

$3,662.49 $615,155.66 $1,136,237.00 $521,081.34 54.14%Source Alt Code TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000 Charges for Services $0.00 $5,335.31 $0.00 -$5,335.31 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue $250.00 $13,125.00 $10,000.00 -$3,125.00 131.25%

SERVICE R 100-34107 Assessment Search Fees $100.00 $725.00 $600.00 -$125.00 120.83%

SERVICE R 100-34108 Administrative Fees $50.00 $5,000.00 $3,000.00 -$2,000.00 166.67%

SERVICE R 100-34109 Copies/Faxes $0.00 $3.00 $50.00 $47.00 6.00%

SERVICE R 100-34206 Other Public Safety Charges $0.00 $620.00 $0.00 -$620.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34207 Fire Protection Services $0.00 $76,027.25 $110,755.00 $34,727.75 68.64%

SERVICE R 100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb $1,171.40 $4,878.80 $6,000.00 $1,121.20 81.31%

SERVICE R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees $0.00 $1,654.40 $2,500.00 $845.60 66.18%

SERVICE R 100-34940 Cemetery Revenues $0.00 $12,150.00 $2,000.00 -$10,150.00 607.50%

$1,571.40 $119,518.76 $134,905.00 $15,386.24 88.59%Source Alt Code SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100 Special Assessments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36200 Miscellaneous Revenues $500.00 $1,505.92 $100.00 -$1,405.92 1505.92%

MISC R 100-36210 Interest Earnings $0.00 $4,249.34 $0.00 -$4,249.34 0.00%

MISC R 100-36215 Investment Income/Loss $0.00 $5,575.34 $0.00 -$5,575.34 0.00%

MISC R 100-36230 Contributions and Donations $0.00 $1,360.00 $400.00 -$960.00 340.00%

MISC R 100-36235 Insurance Dividends $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36250 Damage Deposits $400.00 $11,250.00 $0.00 -$11,250.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36260 Refunds or Reimbursements $0.00 $19.56 $0.00 -$19.56 0.00%

MISC R 100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $391.85 $0.00 -$391.85 0.00%

MISC R 100-39101 Sales of General Fixed Asset $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39203 Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$900.00 $24,352.01 $4,500.00 -$19,852.01 541.16%Source Alt Code MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110 Alchoholic Beverages $0.00 $5,820.00 $10,370.00 $4,550.00 56.12%

LIC PERM R 100-32180 Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $100.00 $1,125.00 $1,000.00 -$125.00 112.50%

LIC PERM R 100-32210 Building Permits $7,740.38 $99,980.95 $100,000.00 $19.05 99.98%

LIC PERM R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 100.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32280 Other Non-Business Lic/Per $0.00 $25.00 $50.00 $25.00 50.00%

$7,840.38 $108,450.95 $112,920.00 $4,469.05 96.04%Source Alt Code LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400 State Grants and Aids $0.00 $4,715.00 $0.00 -$4,715.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $0.00 $59,125.00 $118,253.00 $59,128.00 50.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33410 MV Credit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33420 PERA Aid $0.00 $169.50 $339.00 $169.50 50.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33422 State Fire Aid $0.00 $41,187.23 $39,000.00 -$2,187.23 105.61%

INTGOVT R 100-33426 State Police Aid $0.00 $6,282.92 $5,500.00 -$782.92 114.23%

INTGOVT R 100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $111,479.65 $163,092.00 $51,612.35 68.35%Source Alt Code INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35100 Court Fines $0.00 $2,755.70 $3,000.00 $244.30 91.86%

$0.00 $2,755.70 $3,000.00 $244.30 91.86%Source Alt Code FINES

$13,974.27 $981,712.73 $1,554,654.00 $572,941.27 63.15%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

30



Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

November
2019 Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2
11/14/19 4:01 PM

Revenue Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$13,974.27 $981,712.73 $1,554,654.00 $572,941.27 63.15%

31



11/14/19 4:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

November
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 41110 Council

COUNCIL E 100-41110-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $7,044.12 $13,000.00 $5,955.88 54.19%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-122 FICA $0.00 $434.93 $806.00 $371.07 53.96%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-123 Medicare $0.00 $101.72 $189.00 $87.28 53.82%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $1,300.00 $1,000.00 -$300.00 130.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $7,007.91 $7,500.00 $492.09 93.44%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $1,488.56 $1,000.00 -$488.56 148.86%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous $91.25 $622.43 $20,000.00 $19,377.57 3.11%

$91.25 $17,999.67 $43,495.00 $25,495.33 41.38%Dept 41110 Council

Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $150.00 $0.00 -$150.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $150.00 $5,000.00 $4,850.00 3.00%Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

Dept 41400 City Administrator

CITYADM E 100-41400-101 Full-Time Employees R $5,763.20 $64,298.56 $75,642.00 $11,343.44 85.00%

CITYADM E 100-41400-121 PERA $432.24 $4,965.97 $5,673.00 $707.03 87.54%

CITYADM E 100-41400-122 FICA $356.76 $4,099.06 $4,690.00 $590.94 87.40%

CITYADM E 100-41400-123 Medicare $83.44 $958.69 $1,097.00 $138.31 87.39%

CITYADM E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life $59.24 $588.10 $385.00 -$203.10 152.75%

CITYADM E 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance $700.00 $7,700.00 $8,400.00 $700.00 91.67%

CITYADM E 100-41400-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $1,195.00 $1,500.00 $305.00 79.67%

CITYADM E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $135.00 $250.00 $115.00 54.00%

$7,394.88 $83,940.38 $97,637.00 $13,696.62 85.97%Dept 41400 City Administrator

Dept 41410 Elections

ELECTION E 100-41410-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 -$1,651.40 $100.00 $1,751.40-1651.40%

ELECTION E 100-41410-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $1,601.60 $2,000.00 $398.40 80.08%

$0.00 -$49.80 $2,100.00 $2,149.80 -2.37%Dept 41410 Elections

Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

CLERICAL E 100-41430-101 Full-Time Employees R $3,657.60 $40,852.99 $48,004.00 $7,151.01 85.10%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-121 PERA $274.32 $3,155.09 $3,600.00 $444.91 87.64%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-122 FICA $226.20 $2,602.07 $2,976.00 $373.93 87.44%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-123 Medicare $52.90 $608.50 $696.00 $87.50 87.43%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life $39.96 $399.22 $1,540.00 $1,140.78 25.92%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance $700.00 $7,700.00 $8,400.00 $700.00 91.67%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $180.00 $500.00 $320.00 36.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $45.00 $100.00 $55.00 45.00%

$4,950.98 $55,542.87 $65,816.00 $10,273.13 84.39%Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260 Uniforms $0.00 $245.57 $300.00 $54.43 81.86%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $150.00 $500.00 $350.00 30.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331 Travel Expenses $408.39 $1,461.22 $2,000.00 $538.78 73.06%

$408.39 $1,856.79 $2,800.00 $943.21 66.31%Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

Dept 41530 Accounting

ACCTING E 100-41530-101 Full-Time Employees R $4,243.20 $47,338.40 $55,692.00 $8,353.60 85.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-121 PERA $318.24 $3,656.09 $4,177.00 $520.91 87.53%
32



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

November
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2
11/14/19 4:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

ACCTING E 100-41530-122 FICA $263.08 $3,022.38 $3,453.00 $430.62 87.53%

ACCTING E 100-41530-123 Medicare $61.52 $706.78 $808.00 $101.22 87.47%

ACCTING E 100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life $46.18 $461.16 $1,060.00 $598.84 43.51%

ACCTING E 100-41530-151 Med/Dental Insurance $670.32 $7,373.60 $8,398.00 $1,024.40 87.80%

ACCTING E 100-41530-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $285.00 $1,000.00 $715.00 28.50%

ACCTING E 100-41530-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $50.04 $250.00 $199.96 20.02%

ACCTING E 100-41530-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $3,137.90 $2,500.00 -$637.90 125.52%

$5,602.54 $66,031.35 $77,338.00 $11,306.65 85.38%Dept 41530 Accounting

Dept 41540 Auditing

AUDITING E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $22,150.00 $22,000.00 -$150.00 100.68%

$0.00 $22,150.00 $22,000.00 -$150.00 100.68%Dept 41540 Auditing

Dept 41550 Assessing

ASSESS G E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $21,036.60 $21,000.00 -$36.60 100.17%

$0.00 $21,036.60 $21,000.00 -$36.60 100.17%Dept 41550 Assessing

Dept 41570 Purchasing

PURCHASE E 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER $677.15 $1,179.45 $3,500.00 $2,320.55 33.70%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-205 Bank Fees $0.00 $92.00 $200.00 $108.00 46.00%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies $0.00 $6,463.41 $6,000.00 -$463.41 107.72%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $176.05 $4,269.38 $4,000.00 -$269.38 106.73%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-322 Postage $0.00 $1,223.43 $2,500.00 $1,276.57 48.94%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-570 Office Equip and Furnis $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

$853.20 $13,227.67 $19,200.00 $5,972.33 68.89%Dept 41570 Purchasing

Dept 41600 Computer

COMPUTER E 100-41600-310 Other Professional Serv $124.86 $4,642.37 $5,000.00 $357.63 92.85%

$124.86 $4,642.37 $5,000.00 $357.63 92.85%Dept 41600 Computer

Dept 41610 City Attorney

CITYATNY E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees $2,262.16 $9,853.99 $23,500.00 $13,646.01 41.93%

$2,262.16 $9,853.99 $23,500.00 $13,646.01 41.93%Dept 41610 City Attorney

Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

PLANZONG E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Serv $2,163.00 $24,926.00 $25,000.00 $74.00 99.70%

$2,163.00 $24,926.00 $25,000.00 $74.00 99.70%Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $1,848.69 $7,776.94 $7,000.00 -$776.94 111.10%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $525.00 $525.00 $0.00 100.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Serv $489.24 $4,738.17 $7,500.00 $2,761.83 63.18%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321 Telephone $347.38 $3,890.65 $6,400.00 $2,509.35 60.79%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325 Taxes $0.00 $25.06 $500.00 $474.94 5.01%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities $1,110.29 $8,782.19 $9,600.00 $817.81 91.48%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities $115.09 $2,750.35 $5,000.00 $2,249.65 55.01%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $253.31 $2,829.83 $3,500.00 $670.17 80.85%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Renta $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structure $0.00 $1,794.00 $4,000.00 $2,206.00 44.85%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560 Furniture and Fixtures $0.00 $4,742.54 $2,000.00 -$2,742.54 237.13%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$4,164.00 $37,854.73 $48,025.00 $10,170.27 78.82%Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

Dept 41950 Engineer

ENGINEER E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees $700.00 $21,697.25 $20,000.00 -$1,697.25 108.49%

$700.00 $21,697.25 $20,000.00 -$1,697.25 108.49%Dept 41950 Engineer 33



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

November
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3
11/14/19 4:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

Dept 41960 Insurance

INSURANCE E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $13,129.83 $18,000.00 $4,870.17 72.94%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $23,659.82 $25,000.00 $1,340.18 94.64%

$0.00 $36,789.65 $43,000.00 $6,210.35 85.56%Dept 41960 Insurance

Dept 41970 Legal Publications

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341 Employment $145.59 $145.59 $300.00 $154.41 48.53%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343 Other Advertising $0.00 $119.00 $100.00 -$19.00 119.00%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $199.52 $1,000.00 $800.48 19.95%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354 Recording Fees $0.00 $52.65 $250.00 $197.35 21.06%

$145.59 $516.76 $1,650.00 $1,133.24 31.32%Dept 41970 Legal Publications

Dept 42000 Public Safety (GENERAL)

PUBSAFTY E 100-42000-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $20.00 $0.00 -$20.00 0.00%

$0.00 $20.00 $0.00 -$20.00 0.00%Dept 42000 Public Safety (GENERAL)

Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310 Other Professional Serv $20,679.00 $62,037.00 $82,716.00 $20,679.00 75.00%

$20,679.00 $62,037.00 $82,716.00 $20,679.00 75.00%Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Serv $9,064.17 $101,458.91 $108,770.00 $7,311.09 93.28%

$9,064.17 $101,458.91 $108,770.00 $7,311.09 93.28%Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $23,100.54 $61,000.00 $37,899.46 37.87%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122 FICA $0.00 $3,634.73 $3,782.00 $147.27 96.11%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123 Medicare $0.00 $850.10 $885.00 $34.90 96.06%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $8,543.37 $9,000.00 $456.63 94.93%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $845.59 $350.00 -$495.59 241.60%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fee $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions $93.00 $1,010.00 $1,500.00 $490.00 67.33%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins $0.00 $3,548.16 $5,000.00 $1,451.84 70.96%

$93.00 $41,532.49 $85,817.00 $44,284.51 48.40%Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts $532.00 $1,649.85 $15,500.00 $13,850.15 10.64%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies $0.00 $1,331.00 $1,500.00 $169.00 88.73%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240 Small Tools and Minor $112.70 $112.70 $1,000.00 $887.30 11.27%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260 Uniforms $1,240.97 $4,338.48 $28,500.00 $24,161.52 15.22%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $3,798.89 $5,000.00 $1,201.11 75.98%

$1,885.67 $11,230.92 $51,500.00 $40,269.08 21.81%Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208 Training and Instructio $365.00 $6,956.72 $12,500.00 $5,543.28 55.65%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $2,412.84 $3,210.00 $797.16 75.17%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331 Travel Expenses $1,286.45 $1,580.09 $1,500.00 -$80.09 105.34%

$1,651.45 $10,949.65 $17,210.00 $6,260.35 63.62%Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

FIREVEH E 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels $0.00 $1,748.78 $4,500.00 $2,751.22 38.86%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $12.90 $740.13 $9,000.00 $8,259.87 8.22%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-323 Radio Units $0.00 $5,795.30 $7,805.00 $2,009.70 74.25%

$12.90 $8,284.21 $22,305.00 $14,020.79 37.14%Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles 34



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

November
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4
11/14/19 4:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215 Shop Supplies $382.32 $452.96 $1,650.00 $1,197.04 27.45%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $150.50 $1,940.20 $7,500.00 $5,559.80 25.87%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321 Telephone $142.27 $933.80 $1,000.00 $66.20 93.38%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities $317.66 $2,917.57 $4,500.00 $1,582.43 64.83%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities $54.97 $2,176.51 $3,000.00 $823.49 72.55%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-520 Buildings and Structure $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$1,047.72 $8,421.04 $17,650.00 $9,228.96 47.71%Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124 Fire Pension Contributi $0.00 $41,187.23 $39,000.00 -$2,187.23 105.61%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-125 Other Retirement Contr $0.00 $5,801.00 $11,602.00 $5,801.00 50.00%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $6,250.00 $6,250.00 $0.00 100.00%

$0.00 $53,238.23 $56,852.00 $3,613.77 93.64%Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

INSPADMN E 100-42401-310 Other Professional Serv $5,622.69 $31,904.46 $50,000.00 $18,095.54 63.81%

$5,622.69 $31,904.46 $50,000.00 $18,095.54 63.81%Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

Dept 42700 Animal Control

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $457.00 $1,000.00 $543.00 45.70%

$0.00 $457.00 $1,000.00 $543.00 45.70%Dept 42700 Animal Control

Dept 42800 Cemetery

CEMETERY E 100-42800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 42800 Cemetery

Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101 Full-Time Employees R $11,730.70 $134,678.70 $138,997.00 $4,318.30 96.89%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $1,063.56 $2,000.00 $936.44 53.18%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $12,153.58 $14,580.00 $2,426.42 83.36%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121 PERA $879.80 $10,526.92 $12,300.00 $1,773.08 85.58%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122 FICA $699.81 $9,143.97 $11,072.00 $1,928.03 82.59%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123 Medicare $163.66 $2,138.48 $2,589.00 $450.52 82.60%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life $126.97 $1,326.04 $2,535.00 $1,208.96 52.31%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance $2,521.27 $29,075.91 $32,400.00 $3,324.09 89.74%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208 Training and Instructio $90.00 $2,115.11 $2,500.00 $384.89 84.60%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-212 Motor Fuels $1,589.73 $9,836.20 $7,000.00 -$2,836.20 140.52%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies $230.38 $2,986.30 $7,500.00 $4,513.70 39.82%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $3,376.46 $8,012.38 $12,000.00 $3,987.62 66.77%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials $67.15 $644.55 $1,500.00 $855.45 42.97%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor $245.82 $3,606.36 $5,000.00 $1,393.64 72.13%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-260 Uniforms $0.00 $2,302.88 $3,000.00 $697.12 76.76%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-310 Other Professional Serv $187.90 $4,815.00 $10,000.00 $5,185.00 48.15%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321 Telephone $561.60 $5,350.36 $4,200.00 -$1,150.36 127.39%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-325 Taxes $0.00 $19.50 $200.00 $180.50 9.75%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-381 Electric Utilities $337.61 $3,471.95 $6,000.00 $2,528.05 57.87%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-383 Gas Utilities $193.05 $3,976.53 $5,000.00 $1,023.47 79.53%

$23,001.91 $247,244.28 $280,373.00 $33,128.72 88.18%Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

Dept 43121 Paved Streets

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials $522.00 $35,731.97 $100,000.00 $64,268.03 35.73%

$522.00 $35,731.97 $100,000.00 $64,268.03 35.73%Dept 43121 Paved Streets

Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets
35



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

November
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5
11/14/19 4:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $6,488.00 $15,000.00 $8,512.00 43.25%

$0.00 $6,488.00 $15,000.00 $8,512.00 43.25%Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials $5,963.12 $10,535.98 $20,000.00 $9,464.02 52.68%

$5,963.12 $10,535.98 $20,000.00 $9,464.02 52.68%Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

Dept 43160 Street Lighting

STLGHTG E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities $2,118.93 $18,762.33 $25,000.00 $6,237.67 75.05%

$2,118.93 $18,762.33 $25,000.00 $6,237.67 75.05%Dept 43160 Street Lighting

Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

REFDISPO E 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $0.00 $2,674.82 $1,000.00 -$1,674.82 267.48%

$0.00 $2,674.82 $1,000.00 -$1,674.82 267.48%Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

RECYCLING E 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $3,488.00 $34,656.00 $40,000.00 $5,344.00 86.64%

$3,488.00 $34,656.00 $40,000.00 $5,344.00 86.64%Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

Dept 45186 Senior Center

SRCENTER E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $6,523.53 $8,700.00 $2,176.47 74.98%

$0.00 $6,523.53 $8,700.00 $2,176.47 74.98%Dept 45186 Senior Center

Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

PARKS E 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels $0.00 $1,860.90 $2,000.00 $139.10 93.05%

PARKS E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $1,282.37 $7,343.32 $5,000.00 -$2,343.32 146.87%

PARKS E 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials $0.00 $3,392.07 $8,000.00 $4,607.93 42.40%

PARKS E 100-45200-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00 $0.00 100.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities $93.72 $1,399.86 $2,200.00 $800.14 63.63%

PARKS E 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-440 Programs $134.99 $999.51 $3,000.00 $2,000.49 33.32%

PARKS E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment $792.00 $5,882.21 $8,000.00 $2,117.79 73.53%

$2,303.08 $27,877.87 $36,700.00 $8,822.13 75.96%Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

LIBRARY E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $10,299.46 $11,500.00 $1,200.54 89.56%

$0.00 $10,299.46 $11,500.00 $1,200.54 89.56%Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursem $1,400.00 $10,250.00 $0.00 -$10,250.00 0.00%

$1,400.00 $10,250.00 $0.00 -$10,250.00 0.00%Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

Dept 49360 Transfers Out

TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49360 Transfers Out

Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

TRANSIT E 100-49800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$107,714.49 $1,158,744.43 $1,554,654.00 $395,909.57 74.53%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

36



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

November
2019
Amt

2019
YTD Amt

2019 YTD
Budget

2019 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6
11/14/19 4:01 PM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$107,714.49 $1,158,744.43 $1,554,654.00 $395,909.57 74.53%

37



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 19th day of November, 2019.   
 
The following Council Members were present:   
 
The following Council Members were absent:    
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by ___ and seconded by ___. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 11-19-19-99 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING 

2019 CHIP SEAL PROJECT PAY VOUCHER #1 & FINAL 
 
WHEREAS, The City Engineer of the City of Hanover has reviewed quantities of materials submitted 
for payment of work completed by Allied Blacktop Co. for work completed on the 2019 Chip Seal Project 
previously authorized by Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends to make payment as per attached Final Pay Request, in the amount of 
$80,500.70. 
 
NOW THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, 
hereby approves Pay Request #1 (Final), as per the attachment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:   
 
Opposed or abstained:   
 
Adopted by the city Council this 19th day of November, 2019. 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
       ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

38



39



Collaborative Planning, LLC  

   

Memorandum 

Date: November 14, 2019 

To: Honorable Mayor and Council 

From: Cindy Nash, City Planner 

RE: Mahler Aggregate Mine – 15th Street  

The proposed Mahler Aggregate mine expansion project necessitates a discussion on what should be done 
with 15th Street.  This street is a shared road with the City of St. Michael.  It does not meet 10-ton road 
standards, is a rural section with ditches and no separated pedestrian facilities. It is also the shortest potential 
collector road between the proposed expanded mine and CR 19.  The road pavement is in poor condition. 

As part of the Mahler Aggregate IUP, the City will need to make some determinations about this road.   

Background 

City ordinances require the following related to haul routes for mining operations: 

Haul Routes.  Haul routes on city collector roads shall be identified and shall be located in a manner 
that provides the closest proximity from a haul road to the nearest county or state road. The city 
collector road designated as the haul route must be constructed as 10-ton roads.  In the event that a 
collector road does not meet these requirements, the project proposer shall upgrade the roads at their 
sole expense.   

15th Street does not meet 10-ton road standards. In addition, the July 2019 Pavement Management Report 
prepared by WSB identified a pavement rating of “poor” for this road.  Maintenance recommendations in the 
Pavement Management Report for a road with a “poor” rating would be for a full reconstruct. 

As a part of their proposal, the narrative that was submitted by the applicant (attached) estimates that it will cost 
approximately $200,000 to undertake a reclamation of the existing bituminous and repaving.  This is similar to 
the project the City recently completed for River Road, and the City Engineer has indicated that this may be an 
acceptable alternative to a full reconstruct pending receipt of further study and testing of the existing road.  This 
would enable a lower cost alternative to be implemented as compared to a full reconstruct in order to delay the 
full reconstruct to a timeframe that would be anticipated to be after the completion of mining activities on the site 
(based on estimates of mining provided by the applicant in their narrative). 

The applicant has been paying Haul Fees to the City since the mine was originally opened.  As stated in their 
narrative, they are proposing that the City contribute $100,000 from the balance in the Mahler Pit – 15th Street 
Improvement Fund toward the cost of the reclaim/repave project.  The applicant would then fund the remaining 
estimated $100,000 with a request that construction cost be repaid as additional Haul Fees are remitted to the 
City. 

Hanover staff has consulted with St. Michael staff, who have indicated that they do not have a desire or need to 
make improvements to 15th Street at this time, particularly if the road will experience continued heavy mining 
traffic.   

 

40



11/14/2019  2 

Discussion    

If the project moves forward, it is necessary to identify what should occur with 15th Street.  Feedback from the 
City Council is needed to guide future review and research as this proposed project continues with its planning 
application review.  Based on the results of that additional information gathering, there may be a need to revise 
the preliminary determination from Council.  Discussion topics are the following: 

1. Determine whether or not improvements to 15th Street are necessary based on the existing condition 
and ordinance requirements. 

Staff Notes:  The road doesn’t meet a 10-ton standard and is rated in poor condition in the 
Pavement Management Report.  

2. If improvements are needed, provide direction to the City Engineer as to the scope of improvements 
needed to make this road safe and usable for the next 20 + years.  In particular, is it acceptable to 
improve to a 10-ton standard with a design for the road similar to its current condition, or is it necessary 
to also install to provide separation between heavy truck traffic and pedestrians/bicyclists?   

Staff Notes:  Depending on the City Council’s determination, the City Engineer may need to 
complete additional research to determine if there is sufficient right of way to install a trail in this 
corridor. 

3. Depending on the preliminary determinations in 1 and 2 above, a Council preliminary determination on 
whether or not it would be willing to consider contributing funds from the Mahler Pit - 15th Street 
Improvement Fund. 

Staff Notes:  The Mahler Pit – 15th Street Improvement Fund has been increasing over the years 
with contributions for Haul Fees made based on the amount of aggregate removed from the 
Mahler mine as per the IUP Agreement from 2006.  Per the IUP Agreement for the existing project: 

“Repairs to 15th Street NE shall be funded by said Haul Fees and shall be conducted by the 
City upon completion of the mining operation or earlier based on the recommendation of the 
City Engineer.  Said Haul Fee shall be used for any and all necessary repair to streets caused 
by or resulting from the mining operation and for any other lawful purpose as determined by 
the City.”  

 

 

 

41



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
         09/26/2019 
Fehn Companies  
Gary Fehn 
5050 Barthel Ind. Dr 
PO Box 256 
Albertville, MN 55301 
763-497-2428 
 
Project Narrative for Mahler Aggregate Mine Expansion 
 
 
The project is an expansion of an existing mining operation initially approved by the City of 
Hanover under an Interim Use Permit (IUP) issued to Mahler Enterprises, LLC for a 37-acre 
parcel in 2006.  The IUP was originally scheduled to expire on December 31, 2012.  The 
Hanover City Council amended the IUP in 2011, 2018, and 2019 with time extensions.  The 
current IUP will now expire December 31, 2019.   
 
Fehn Companies (or associated entity) is in process of acquiring additional adjacent properties 
resulting in a combined total property area of 184.9 acres, and proposes to expand the existing 
gravel mine from 25 acres up to 155 acres.  The properties and surrounding lands are known 
for aggregate resources and surface soils are typically sandy loams.  The 130-acre mining 
expansion area is mostly cropland that has been under agricultural use for decades.  The 
eastern boundary of the property abuts the Crow River.  Land adjacent to the Crow River will 
remain unchanged and includes areas of floodplain, natural vegetation, and wetlands.  No 
mining excavation or stockpiling of materials will occur in the floodplain or shoreland area. 
 
Expansion of the existing aggregate mine will be phased over 15 to 20 years, depending on the 
demand for aggregate and market conditions.  All phases of mining will ultimately cover up to 
155 acres.  Each of five phases will cover about 25 to 40 acres.  The number of phases and 
mining pace will be determined by market demand for mining materials.  Mining will generally 
be phased from the existing mine to the west and then to the south.  Stormwater management 
basins will be constructed as part of first phase excavation and will be configured to remain in 
place through all phases and reclamation after mining is complete.   
 
Mining is expected to eventually remove approximately 5.5 million cubic yards of aggregate 
material over the 15- to 20-year project lifespan.  Mining will remove sand and gravel to 
depths between 20 feet and 26 feet.  The bottom of the mine surface will be at least 10 feet 
above the groundwater level.  Stormwater ponds, infiltration basins, and wash ponds may be 
located lower, but will be at least 3 feet above corresponding groundwater levels.  A 345-kV 
overhead transmission line runs diagonally northwest-southeast through the site.  Existing 
transmission line poles will remain in place with mining excavation sloped around poles to 
maintain support as allowed by Xcel Energy Company.  Slopes at edges of mined areas will be 
as steep as 3:1, but these slopes will be flattened to 5:1 or flatter during reclamation. 
 
Vehicles will access the mine from 15th Street NE, at the intersection of 15th Street and River 
Road NE/Lander Avenue NE.  Traffic generated by the project include employee passenger 

42



Project Narrative for Mahler Aggregate Mine Expansion  September 26, 2019 
Fehn Companies   
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

vehicles and trucks hauling earthen material.  Haul routes will follow county and state 
roadways that are collectors and arterials as much as possible.  The Traffic Study completed as 
part of the EAW process concluded that area intersections operate at acceptable Levels of 
Service under existing and proposed (year 2020) conditions.  The project is expected to have 
minimal impact on the area roadway network. 
 
Aggregate mining will be conducted using front-end loader extraction.  Material processing 
may include screening, crushing, washing, and stockpiling.  Crushing and screening equipment 
will be staged in proximity to the mining activity.  Material stockpiles will also be created in 
proximity to the mining activity.  Crushing/screening equipment and material stockpiles will 
move across the site with excavation operations. Material stockpiles will typically be 30-foot 
maximum height. 
 
The washing operation will recycle with excavated ponds that will typically be filled with 3 to 
4 feet of water pumped from an onsite well.  The wash plant will include three ponds: an initial 
pond to catch fine native soil materials and two secondary ponds for water quality treatment 
and infiltration.  Water from the third pond will be reused in wash operations.   
 
Concrete recycling will occur intermittently, about twice per year during the construction 
season and is not expected to exceed 50,000 cubic yards of recycled material per year.  
Portable crushing machinery will be positioned at relatively low elevations in the gravel pit to 
maximize the vertical distance and buffer from neighboring land uses. 
 
Measures to reduce noise and increase screening from neighbors will include 200-foot setbacks 
from residential zoned property lines, creation of 10-foot high topsoil berms that will deflect 
noise and provide a visual screening barrier, and placement of the portable crusher equipment 
at lower elevations.  Topsoil stockpiles and berms will be seeded and stabilized to prevent 
erosion.   
 
There are no permanent structures existing on the property and none are proposed.  Temporary 
structures will be utilized at the site for storage of equipment and operations activities (ie. scale 
shack, etc.).  All temporary structures will be removed at the time of reclamation.  Employee 
vehicle parking will be located adjacent to the temporary structures. 
 
Reclaimed mined areas will be planted to temporary grassland as part of reclamation.  Best 
Management Practices (BMPs) will be implemented to protect water quality and reduce the 
potential for soil erosion and sedimentation. 
 
Hours of mining operation are proposed as follows: 

Monday through Friday 
  6:30 am to 7:00 am: 

   employee arrival 
equipment warmup 
staging of materials and prepare for loading 

7:00 am to 7:00 pm:  
excavation and crushing production 

43



Project Narrative for Mahler Aggregate Mine Expansion  September 26, 2019 
Fehn Companies   
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

loading of materials 
trucking off-site 

Saturday  
6:30 am to 7:00 am: 

   employee arrival 
equipment warmup 
staging of materials and prepare for loading 

7:00 am to 2:00 pm 
limited operations to loading and trucking off-site (periodically needed 
due to construction weather delays during the week) 
no crushing, screening, or washing operations 

 
Existing 15th Street is in poor condition and needs improvement.  The city of Hanover collects 
an aggregate tax at a rate that equates to $0.135 per cubic yard ($0.05/cy Fehn to City; 
$0.085/cy Fehn to Wright County to City) of material mined and hauled off-site.  City of 
Hanover Fund #409 Mahler Pit – 15th Street Improvement Fund has a collected balance of 
$94,832.55.  An additional $15,000 +/- is anticipated to be deposited for 2019 resulting in a 
fund balance of approximately $110,000.00. 
 
It is estimated that mine expansion will yield 5.5 million cy resulting in future deposit of 
$742,500.00 (5.5M x $0.135) to 15th Street Improvement Fund.  Total aggregate tax collected 
to end of mining operations would then be $852,500.00 ($110,000.00 + $742,500.00). 
 
Improvement of 15th Street between River Road NE/Lander Avenue NE and Wright Co Hwy 
19 is proposed as follows: 
  

 Spring or early summer 2020; Fehn Companies undertake reclaim existing bituminous 
and pave with new 5” depth bituminous pavement 
(design and costs as approved by city engineer) 

 Reclaim/repave estimate $200,000.00 
 City contribute $100,000.00 from 15th Street Improvement Fund 
 Fehn Companies contribute $100,000.00 +/- balance   
 City refund aggregate tax collected on annual basis to Fehn Companies until 

 $100,000.00 construction cost amount is repaid 
  
At end of mining operations, a balance of $652,500.00 is estimated to be available in the 15th 
Street Improvement Fund for future reconstruction of the road. 
 
Please contact us with any questions.  We appreciate your consideration. 
 
Gary Fehn 
 

44



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

A regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 19th day of November, 2019. 
 
The following Council Members were present:   
 
The following Council Members were absent:    
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by ___ and seconded by ___. 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO 11-19-19-100 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING REVISED PROPOSAL FROM WSB & ASSOCIATES FOR 

2020 PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 

WHEREAS, City Council previously authorized pavement analysis/coring via Res No 11-04-19-96 for 
the 2020 Pavement Improvement Process; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City received the analysis report and a revised proposal from WSB & Associates to 
provide engineering services for the 2020 Pavement Management project, as attached. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, 
hereby approves the attached revised proposal submitted by WSB & Associates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Council members voting in favor:   
 
Opposed or abstained:   
 
Adopted by the city Council this 19th day of November, 2019. 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
       ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

45



 

\\GVFILES01\Resources\Group Data\Municipal\Clients - Cities - Counties\Hanover\Proposals\2020 Pavement Improvements\V2\LTR PROP-2020-Pavement-
111919.docx 

7
0

1
 X

E
N

IA
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 S

  
| 

 S
U

IT
E

 3
0

0
  

| 
 M

IN
N

E
A

P
O

L
IS

, 
M

N
  

| 
 5

5
4

1
6

  
| 

 7
63

.5
4

1
.4

8
00

  
| 

 W
S

B
E

N
G

.C
O

M
 

November 19, 2019 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
c/o, Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
City of Hanover 
11250 5th Street NE 
Hanover, MN 55341 
 
 
Re: Proposal to Provide Professional Engineering Services for the 

2020 Pavement Improvement Project 
City of Hanover, MN 

 
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
WSB is pleased to present this proposal to the City of Hanover to provide professional 
engineering services as they relate to the 2020 Pavement Improvement Project. Our scope of 
work includes the following project tasks: 
 

• existing condition data collection 
• topographic survey 
• meetings 
• final design 
• permits 
• project bidding 
• construction administration 
• construction staking 
• construction inspection 
• record plans 

 
The proposed scope of services presented in this proposal is based on site visits, discussions 
with City Staff, and review of maps and record drawings. 
 
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
The City of Hanover wishes to improve the deteriorating bituminous asphalt road surface on the 
following streets and as shown in Figure 1: 
 

• Whitetail Dr N from 109th Ave N (County Rd 117) to Crow Hassan Park Rd 
• Whitetail Ln N from Whitetail Dr N to cul-de-sac 

 
The proposed project is anticipated to consist of a 2-inch bituminous overlay of the project area 
and replacement of roadway culverts located at the street intersections. 
 
PROJECT APPROACH/SCOPE OF SERVICES 
WSB’s project scope and proposed tasks are based on our above understanding of the project 
and we propose the following scope of services: 
 
  

46



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
November 19, 2019 
Page 2 

1. Project Management  
This task includes planning and coordination of all work tasks, establishment and 
monitoring of budgets, meetings, and correspondence with the City and other agencies. 
The City Engineer will provide technical direction on all aspects of the project and keep 
the City informed of the project progress. 
 

2. Data Collection 
This task involves gathering physical data, as well as record information, regarding the 
project area. Information and tasks to be completed under this item will include the 
following: 

 
• Private Utility Information – WSB will order a Gopher State One Call design 

locate and from that, identify all private utilities in the area. WSB will contact the 
identified utilities to obtain facility mapping along with establishing a contact 
person to discuss the proposed improvements. Based on the preliminary layout, 
utility conflicts will be identified and design measures will be considered to 
accommodate these conflicts. 

 
3. Meetings 

 
 WSB will attend and assist in facilitating the following meetings as listed below: 
 

• 1 neighborhood meeting 
• 1 meeting with City staff to discuss final design 
• Attend bid opening 
• City Council meeting for accept plans/specs and authorize ad for bid 
• City Council meeting to review bids and award contract for construction 
• Preconstruction meeting 

 
4. Topographic Survey 

WSB will perform a topographic survey of the project area to collect only the pertinent 
information needed for the construction plans. Elements collected in the survey will 
include streets, driveways, and manholes/catch basins/culverts. In addition to information 
collected during the topographic survey, as-built drawings shall be reviewed and utilized. 

 
5. Final Design 

The final design shall be based on the preliminary design option accepted in the 
feasibility report. 
 

A. Title Sheet/Index Map – Plan title sheet with index and location map. The sheet 
shall identify the general project area to be reconstructed. 

 
B. General Layout – Overall layout of project area. 
 
C. Construction Notes and Details – City of Hanover standard details shall be 

used and any standard City notes. If there is no existing detail or note for a given 
situation, WSB shall provide the information for City review and approval. Typical 
street sections shall be included in these sheets. 

 
D. Traffic Control / Staging Plan – A traffic control plan and staging plan, noting 

detours and construction stage necessary during construction, shall be 
developed and coordinated with the City. 

 

47



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
November 19, 2019 
Page 3 

E. Removal/Demolition Plan – Plan sheets shall be based on information gathered 
during the topographic survey. Items to be removed, demolished, or salvaged 
shall be identified on this plan. 

F. Street and Utility Plan / Profile –Plans shall indicate all new street widths, right-
of-way width, driveway replacements, and culvert replacements. Any signage 
that needs to be added or replaced on this project shall be identified in these plan 
sheets. 

 
G. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) – Plan sheets containing 

erosion and sedimentation control strategies and notes for construction 
operations.  SWPPP is required per the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 
(MPCA) NPDES Storm Water Permit. 

 
H. Project Manual – The project manual shall contain all project documents 

pertinent to construction including: advertisement for bids, bidding instructions, 
bid proposal form, bonding documents, contract agreements, insurance 
certificates, general conditions, technical specifications, appendices and any 
other information required by the City of Hanover. The specifications shall be 
written to conform to the City of Hanover’s standards and format. 

 
6. Permitting 

It is anticipated that the following permits will be needed for the projects: 
 

• NPDES Storm Water Permit (MPCA)  
 
Permit applications for these permits will be prepared and submitted to the permitting 
agencies. It is assumed the City will pay for any permit fees. These tasks include time for 
follow-up with the agencies to obtain the permits. 
 

7. Project Bidding 
WSB will complete the bidding process including providing the bidding documents to the 
contractor. WSB will provide the City with a plan holders list. WSB will prepare the 
advertisement for bids, respond to bidder’s questions, issue addenda (if required), attend 
bid opening and tabulate results, prepare a letter of award recommendation to the City, 
prepare notice of award and contract agreement, and forward to the contractor. 
 

8. Construction Staking 
WSB will provide location and offset stakes for project roads and infrastructure during 
construction. One (1) set of stakes will be provided per project component and location. 

 
9. Construction Inspection and Administration 

WSB will provide on-site construction inspection for a period of three weeks during 
construction activities. In addition, we will perform reviews of temporary and permanent 
erosion control measures on the project for compliance with applicable permits and 
specifications. WSB will track material quantities and prepare construction pay vouchers 
for the City’s approval. 
 

10. Record Plans 
WSB will perform a post-construction survey of structures and other pertinent information. 
We will then use construction data, along with the survey, to create record drawings. 
 

  

48



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
November 19, 2019 
Page 4 

SCHEDULE 
We are available to start the project immediately upon your approval. 
 
Topographic & existing conditions survey................................................................ November 2019 
Approve plans/authorize advertisement for bid ...................................................... February 4, 2020 
Receive bids/award project ............................................................................................. March 2020 
Begin construction ..................................................................................................... May/June 2020 
Final completion of construction ............................................................................ July/August 2020 
 
PROPOSED FEE 
WSB will provide the services as outlined in Project Approach / Scope of Services. Our budget 
was developed based on our understanding of the scope and experience with similar type 
projects. A summary of the costs for each phase of the projects are as follows: 
 
 

  
TASK DESCRIPTION FEE 

1 TOPOGRAPHIC & EXISTING CONDITIONS SURVEY $3,600  
2 PAVEMENT ANALYSIS/CORING (previously approved) $1,450 
3 FINAL DESIGN & BIDDING $10,100 
4 CONSTRUCTION STAKING $1,650 
5 MATERIAL TESTING $2,750 
6 CONSTRUCTION INSPECTION/ADMINISTRATION $12,400 

 TOTAL PROPOSED FEE $31,950 
 
We propose to complete Tasks 1 through 6 as indicated on an hourly not-to-exceed fee of 
$31,950. 
 
If additional work outside of the above-described scope, it will proceed only after City approval. 
WSB would work with the City to define the scope of any additional work for City approval. This 
additional work would be billed on an hourly basis in accordance with WSB’s 2019 and 2020 Fee 
Schedules. 
 
The proposed scope and fee, presented herein, represents our complete understanding of the 
project. If you are in agreement with our proposal, please sign two copies and return one copy to 
our office. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact me at (651)286-8465. Once 
again, we appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to working with you 
and your staff 
 
Sincerely, 
 
WSB 
 
 
 
 
Justin Messner, PE 
City Engineer 

 
ACCEPTED BY: 
City of Hanover, MN 
 
Name       
 
Title    
 
Date    
 

49



50



WSB Project: 2020 Pavement Improvement Project Design By: NNP
Project Location: Hanover, MN Checked By: JTH
City Project No.:

WSB Project No: Date: 11/12/2019

Item 

No.

MnDOT 

Specification 

No.

Description Unit
Estimated Total 

Quantity

Estimated Unit 

Price

Estimated Total 

Cost

1 2021.501 MOBILIZATION LS 1 9,000.00$         9,000.00$         

2 2104.502 SALVAGE SIGN EACH 8 35.00$              280.00$            

3 2104.503 SAWING BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT L F 180 2.50$                450.00$            

4 2104.503 REMOVE PIPE CULVERTS L F 90 10.00$              900.00$            

5 2104.504 REMOVE CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 20 12.00$              240.00$            

6 2104.504 REMOVE BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT S Y 85 12.00$              1,020.00$         

7 2105.507 COMMON EXCAVATION C Y 342 26.00$              8,892.00$         

8 2211.507 AGGREGATE BASE (CV) CLASS 5 C Y 37 28.00$              1,026.76$         

9 2221.507 SHOULDER BASE AGGREGATE (CV) CLASS 5 C Y 258 42.00$              10,842.22$       

10 2331.601 BITUMINOUS DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT SY 85 30.00$              2,550.00$         

11 2232.501 MILL BITUMINOUS SURFACE (EDGE) S Y 5421 1.65$                8,944.83$         

12 2357.506 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK COAT GAL 935 3.00$                2,805.00$         

13 2360.509 TYPE SP 12.5 WEARING COURSE MIX (2,B) TON 1162 78.00$              90,651.99$       

14 2501.502 18" RC PIPE APRON EACH 6 1,200.00$         7,200.00$         

15 2501.503 18" RC PIPE CULVERT CLASS V L F 90 75.00$              6,750.00$         

16 2531.504 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY PAVEMENT S Y 20 40.00$              800.00$            

17 2540.601 MAILBOX (TEMPORARY) LS 1 1,000.00$         1,000.00$         

18 2563.601 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 5,000.00$         5,000.00$         

19 2564.518 SIGN PANELS TYPE C S F 18 27.00$              486.00$            

20 2564.602 SIGN PANELS TYPE SPECIAL EACH 6 225.00$            1,350.00$         

21 2564.602 INSTALL SIGN EACH 8 85.00$              680.00$            

22 2573.502 STORM DRAIN INLET PROTECTION EACH 3 150.00$            450.00$            

23 2573.503 SEDIMENT CONTROL LOG TYPE WOOD FIBER L F 3485 2.25$                7,841.25$         

24 2574.507 BOULEVARD TOPSOIL BORROW C Y 259 35.00$              9,065.00$         

25 2575.504 EROSION CONTROL BLANKETS CATEGORY 3 S Y 2324 2.00$                4,648.00$         

26 2575.605 BLOWN COMPOST SEEDING S Y 2324 6.00$                13,944.00$       
CONSTRUCTION TOTAL 196,817.06$     

CONTINGENCY TOTAL (10%) 19,681.71$       

TOTAL 216,498.76$     

A. Surface Improvements

OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

51



 

  

70
1 

XE
N

IA
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 S

  
| 

 S
U

IT
E

 3
00

  
| 

 M
IN

N
E

A
P

O
LI

S
, 

M
N

  
| 

 5
54

16
  

| 
 7

63
.5

41
.4

80
0 

 |
  

W
S

B
E

N
G

.C
O

M
 

Memorandum 
 
To: Nick Preisler 
 
From: Andrea Blanchette 
 Tom Wood 
 Sheue Torng Lee 
 
Date: November 11, 2019 
 
Re: Pavement Coring Forensic Report 
 City of Hanover  
 WSB Project No. 015117-000  
 

 
WSB is pleased to submit this pavement forensics report detailing the results of the pavement 
coring which was completed on November 7, 2019 in the City of Hanover. The various 
characteristics of the pavement cores were analyzed to assist in determining the appropriate 
pavement maintenance or rehabilitation method for the roadways.  
 
A total of 8 pavement cores were obtained 
along Whitetail Drive and Whitetail Lane.  The 
locations of the pavement cores are 
summarized in Figure 2.  A summary of the 
pavement depths and conditions, and 
recommended maintenance activity for the 
streets are shown in Table 1.   
 
The cores obtained had bituminous depths 
ranging from 5 inches to 5.5 inches, with at 
least 9 inches of underlying aggregate base.  
Half of the cores were in good condition, while 
the remaining half were in poor shape showing 
delamination and deterioration.  Bottom lift of 
three of the cores were crumbled.  There were 
two core locations with granular subgrade 
(Core 4 and Core 7), the other core locations 
had clay subgrade material.  Roadway surface 
observed to exhibit extensive crack patterns 
(Figure 1). 

 

  

Figure 1. Close-up photo of the cracks 
observed along Whitetail Drive. 

52



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 2 

 
 

Figure 2.  Pavement core locations along Whitetail Drive and Whitetail Lane in the City of 
Hanover. 

 
 

 

Core 1 

Core 2 

Core 3 

Core 4 

Core 5 

Core 6 

Core 7 

Core 8 

53



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 3 

Table 1. Pavement core information and recommended maintenance or rehabilitation. 

 

  

Core 
ID Location 

Bituminous 
Depth 

(inches) 

Aggregate 
Depth 

(inches) 
Subgrade 
Material 

Recommended 
Maintenance / 
Rehabilitation 

Notes 

1 

Whitetail 
Drive 

5 12 Gray clay 

Edge mill and overlay 
*/ Full Depth 

Reclamation (FDR) ᵠ 

Top lift was 2.25 
inches.  Core was in 

good condition. 

2 5.5 9 Gray clay 

Top lift was 2.5 inches.  
Core was in poor 
condition showing 

deterioration. 

3 

Whitetail 
Lane 

5 11 Clay 
Top lift was 2.5 inches.  

Core was in good 
condition. 

4 5 10 Granular 

Top lift was 2.5 inches.  
Core was in very poor 

condition showing 
delamination and the 
bottom lift crumbled. 

5 

Whitetail 
Drive 

5 10.5 Clay 

Top lift was 2.5 inches.  
Core was in poor 
condition showing 

delamination and the 
bottom crumbled. 

6 5 12 Clay 

Top lift was 2.5 inches.  
Core was in poor 
condition showing 

delamination.  Top lift of 
the core exhibited crack 

while the bottom lift 
crumbled. 

7 5.5 9 Granular 
Top lift was 2.5 inches.  

Core was in good 
condition. 

8 5 14 Clay 
Top lift was 2.5 inches.  

Core was in good 
condition. 

* Edge mill and overlay would be a short-term preservation with an estimated life of 10 to 15 years.  It would be 
recommended to perform crack sealing as soon as the cracks reflect through the new overlay.  
ᵠ FDR would be a 25- to 30-year long-term rehabilitation method with proper preservation activities scheduled and 
performed. 

54



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 4 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Appendix A 
City of Hanover 
Coring Photos 

  

55



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 5 

Core 1  

 

 

 

 

56



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 6 

Core 2  

 

 

 

 

57



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 7 

Core 3 

 

 

 

58



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 8 

Core 4 

 

 

 

 

59



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 9 

Core 5 

 

 

 

60



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 10 

Core 6 

 

 

 

61



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 11 

Core 7 

 

 

 

62



Nick Preisler 
November 11, 2019 
Page 12 

Core 8 

 

 

 

63



 
 

 
City of Hanover 11250 5th St NE, Hanover, MN 55341 | (p) (763) 497-3777 (f) (763) 497-1873 | cityhall@ci.hanover.mn.us 
 

To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Re:  Cemetery Policy Review 
 
Date:  November 14, 2019 
 
Enclosed is the proposed Cemetery Policy Amendment to reflect the addition of the Columbarium project.  
In addition to any questions or suggested changes recommended by City Council, we will need to discuss 
whether future owners will be expected to have the door engraved or a plaque installed.  Either way, the 
cost would be on the owner of the niche, and staff suggests we choose a preferred vendor to work with to 
ensure consistency.  Font style of lettering will need to be determined at some point in the future as well.  
Should Council desire a plaque be installed, Council will then need to determine style(s) of plaque to 
allow.  This could be chosen at a later date as well.  I have enclosed some examples for your review. 

64



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-1 
 

CITY OF HANOVER 
 

WRIGHT / HENNEPIN COUNTIES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CEMETERY POLICY 
 
 
 
 

AMENDED BY: 
Res No XX-XX-XX-XX 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

65



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-2 
 

Table of Contents 
 
Title Page ............................................................................................................................... 2300-1 
Table of Contents ................................................................................................................... 2300-2 
2300.01 Preface............................................................................................................ 2300-3 
2300.02 Establishment ................................................................................................. 2300-3 
2300.03 Definitions...................................................................................................... 2300-3 
2300.04 Legal Title of Burial Plots.............................................................................. 2300-4 
2300.05 Lot of Ownership ........................................................................................... 2300-5 
2300.06 Lot and Burials ............................................................................................... 2300-6 
2300.07 Interment and Disinterment ........................................................................... 2300-6 
2300.08 Memorials and Monuments ........................................................................... 2300-8 
2300.09 Seasonal Memorials ....................................................................................... 2300-9 
2300.10 General Care and Maintenance .................................................................... 2300-10 
2300.11 Conduct and Use of Cemetery ..................................................................... 2300-10 
 
 

66



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-3 
 

2300.01 PREFACE 
 
The Hanover City Cemetery is owned and controlled by the City of Hanover.  It is under the direct 
supervision of the Mayor and the City Council of Hanover, Minnesota. 
 
It is the aim of the City of Hanover to make the Hanover City Cemetery a quiet and beautiful 
cemetery.  To continue improvement and to preserve the appearance of the Cemetery requires the 
cooperation of all lot owners. 
 
For the mutual protection of every lot purchaser, the City of Hanover hereby adopts the following 
rules and regulations.  All lot owners, and all lots sold, shall be subject to said rules and regulations, 
amendments, or alterations as shall be adopted by the City from time to time; and the reference to 
these rules and regulations in the deed or certificate of ownership to lots shall have the same force 
and effect as if set in full therein. 
 
Lots shall be sold at such rates as the Hanover City Council shall from time to time designate.  The 
Hanover City Council may review charges made for associated costs such as grave and monument 
locating.  If it is deemed advisable, the Hanover City Council may adjust prices accordingly.  The 
rates and charges are reviewed annually by the Council and will be set by resolution. 
 
2300.02 ESTABLISHMENT 
 
A Cemetery has been established and is continued upon land acquired by purchase from Richard 
and Johanna Saenger on July 19, 1900, and is described as follows: 
 
Beginning at a point on the section line eight and 75/100 (8 75/100) chains north of the southeast 
corner of the north east quarter (1/4) of the southeast quarter (1/4) of section thirty five (35) 
township one hundred and twenty (120) range twenty four (24) running north on said section line 
two (2) chains thence due west three and 75/100 (3 75/100) chains to place of beginning.  Three 
quarters (0.75) of an acre to be used for cemetery purposes. 
 
No person shall lay out or establish any cemetery, or use any lot of land within this City for the 
burial of the dead except in the said Hanover City Cemetery, or some other tract of land duly 
designated as a cemetery by an ordinance of the City Council. 
 
2300.03 DEFINITIONS 
 
Burial, cremation 
The interment of the ashes of a deceased person.  
 
Burial, traditional 
The interment of an intact dead body in a coffin or casket. 
 
Burial plot 
See Grave. 
 

67



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-4 
 

Certificate of cremation  
 
Certificate of ownership 
A document indicating the purchase of the use of a cemetery lot or columbarium niche for the 
purpose of burial. 
 
City 
The City of Hanover, Minnesota, owning and controlling the cemetery. 
 
Cemetery 
A hallowed park for earth interments. 
 
Columbarium 
An above ground structure of vaults, called niches, for the interment of no more than two person’s 
cremains in each niche. 
 
Disposition permit 
A document issued by the State Registrar after the documentation of death worksheet has been 
filed.  It is required prior to burial, entombment or cremation of a deceased person.  It is given to 
the cemetery official where the final disposition occurs. 
 
Grave 
A space of ground reserved for one full body interment or two cremains 
 
Interment 
The disposition of human remains or cremains by burial. 
 
Lot 
Space in the cemetery reserved for the interment of human remains.  The term includes and applies 
to one or more than one adjoining grave. 
 
Lot owner 
The person or persons purchasing the use of a cemetery lot or columbarium niche for the purpose 
of burial. 
 
Memorial 
A marker of granite or other approved material that does not extend above the surface of the lawn 
or is attached to the face of a columbarium niche door. 
 
Memorial, seasonal 
Flowers, plants and artificial flowers placed in non-glass containers, plant stands or monument 
containers during the time period of May 15th through October 15th or from December 1st until 
March 1st. 
 
 
 

Commented [AB1]: Not needed.  The funeral homes are sending 
the Disposition Permit that states whether the person was cremated 
or embalmed. 

Commented [AB2]: Definition was missing from previously 
adopted policy. 
Updated to include columbarium. 

Commented [AB3]: Added definition. 

Commented [AB4]: Definition was missing from previously 
adopted policy. 

Commented [AB5]: Definition was missing from previously 
adopted policy. 
Updated to include columbarium. 

Commented [AB6]: Updated to include columbarium. 

Commented [AB7]: Definition was missing from previously 
adopted policy. 

68



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-5 
 

Monument 
A marker of granite or other approved stone that extends above the surface of the lawn. 
 
Niche 
A display vault in a wall or structure specifically designed to hold cremation urns. 
 
Urn 
An item that will hold a deceased person’s cremated remains. 
 
Wash 
The area measuring four (4) to six (6) inches extending around the monument or memorial which 
is part of the cement base of which the monument or memorial is adhered. 
 
2300.04 LEGAL TITLE 
 
The City of Hanover sells only the exclusive right of burial in a specific grave space, or grave 
spaces, known as burial plots.  The legal title to all land in the cemetery remains in the Hanover 
City Cemetery; and all grave spaces will be subject to the laws of the State of Minnesota relating 
to the exclusive right of burial and are subject to the rules, regulations, and fee schedule in effect 
at the time of interment. 
 
 
2300.05 LOT OF OWNERSHIP 
 
Subd. 1.  The laws of the State of Minnesota govern the descent of title to cemetery lots, as well 
as matters pertaining to assignments, conveyances, devices, trust deeds, and inalienability.  The 
City will issue at the time of full purchase price, or shortly thereafter, a certificate of ownership to 
each lot owner. 
 
Subd. 2.  Descent of title is proven during probate of the estate of a descendant.  When a Lot 
owner’s estate has been probated, a Certificate of Final Decree should be filed with the City in 
order to establish the title of the new owner, provided the decree covers the cemetery lot, and 
determines the questions of ownership.  If the cemetery lot is not covered by the decree, the title 
will then be established under Rule 1.03 Subd. 3. 
 
Subd. 3.  In the case of a deceased Lot owner’s estate not being probated, ownership based upon 
relationship or devise may be presumptively established by filing an Affidavit of Claimant with 
the City.  If the facts as stated in the affidavit are not objected to within one year and no adverse 
claim is presented within the same timeframe, such an affidavit shall be conclusive proof of the 
facts and claims therein contained. 
 
Subd. 4.  When the title has been proven by either Rule 1.02 or 1.03 Subd. 2 or 3, the City will 
issue a Certificate of Ownership to the new owner upon surrender of the Deed or Certificate 
cancelling ownership of the deceased owner. 
 

Commented [AB8]: Added information. 

Commented [AB9]: Added information. 

Commented [AB10]: Definition was missing from previously 
adopted policy. 
Updated to make wash between 4-6 inches to meet customer needs. 

Commented [AB11]: Added. 

Commented [AB12]: Corrected. 

Commented [AB13]: Corrected. 

69



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-6 
 

Subd. 5.  No transfer or assignment by a lot owner of any interest will be valid without securing 
the written consent of the City.  Such consent will be granted only in those cases permitted by the 
laws of the State of Minnesota. 
 
Subd. 6.  Consent to a transfer or an assignment may be refused due to any indebtedness to the 
City from the lot owner of record. 
 
Subd. 7.  When a transfer has been made in accordance with cemetery policies, a Certificate of 
Ownership will be issued to the new owner upon surrender of the previously issued Certificate 
cancelling ownership of the former owner. 
 
Subd. 8.  A lot owner may dispose of his or her lot by Will to any one of his or her surviving 
relatives, or to the cemetery in trust, for the use and benefit of the persons designated in the Will, 
but no such lot shall be affected by a testamentary devise unless the same be specifically mentioned 
in the Will and by such devise limited to one particular person. 
 
Subd. 9.  The City will repurchase any lot with proof of ownership at the original purchase price.  
If ownership has been transferred due to Will, the new owner may have to prove the relationship 
to the previous owner. 
 
2300.06 LOT BURIALS 
 
Subd. 1.  All fees or charges are payable to the City of Hanover.  Patrons of the cemetery are 
requested not to pay any fee or gratuity to anyone other than the City Clerk or his or her 
representative. 
 
Subd. 2.  A lot purchase must be paid in full prior to interment.  Interment prior to payment must 
be arranged at the City Hall office. 
 
Subd. 3.  Within the Hanover City Cemetery, Rows 10, 12, and 13 have been designated as 
cremation burials and sold as such.  All other rows will be considered traditional burials.  If a burial 
is planned for one casket and one set of cremains, a lot may be sold as a traditional lot even though 
it may be located in the cremation row of 12 or 13. 
 
Subd. 4.  Memorial or Monument markers will not be installed on any lot until full purchase price 
and any indebtedness owed to the City has been paid. 
 
Subd. 5.  No lot shall be used for any other purpose than for the burial of the human dead. 
 
Subd. 6.  No easement or right of interment is granted to any plot owners in any road, drive, alley, 
or walkway within the Cemetery. 
 
Subd. 7.  Descriptions of lots will be in accordance with the cemetery plots.  All records will be 
kept at the City Hall office. 
 

Commented [AB14]: Strike. 

70



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-7 
 

Subd. 8.  The City will take all reasonable precautions to protect lot owners and the property rights 
of lot owners, within the Cemetery, from loss or damage.  The City distinctly disclaims all 
responsibility for loss or damage from causes beyond its reasonable control, and, especially from 
damage caused by the elements, any act of God, common enemy, thieves, vandals, strikers, 
malicious mischief makers, explosions, unavoidable accidents, invasion, insurrection, riots, or 
order of any military or civil authority, whether the damage be direct or collateral, other than as 
herein provided. 
 
Subd. 9.  It is the duty of the plot owner to notify the City of any change of address.  Notice sent 
to a plot owner at the last address on file in the Cemetery records shall be sufficient and proper 
legal notification. 
 
 
2300.07 INTERMENT AND DISINTERMENT 
 
Subd. 1.  The City will not be responsible for any order given by telephone or for any mistake 
occurring from the want of precise and proper instructions as to the particular space, size of grave, 
and location in a plot, where interment is desired. 
 
Subd. 2.  The City reserves, and shall have the right to correct any errors that may be made by it, 
either in making interments, disinterments, or removals, or in the description, transfer, or 
conveyance of any interment property, either by canceling such conveyance and substituting a 
similar location as far  as possible, or as may be selected by the City, by refunding the amount of 
money paid on account of said purchase.  In the event such error shall involve the interment of 
remains of any person in such property, the City reserves, and shall have, the right to remove or 
transfer such remains so interred to such other property of equal value and similar location as may 
be substituted and conveyed in lieu thereof. 
 
Subd. 3.  Prior to interment, a copy of the Disposition Permit or Certificate of Cremation must be 
supplied to the City. 
 
Subd. 4.  Prior to interment, payment of any and all indebtedness due the City must be arranged at 
the City Hall Office. 
 
Subd. 5.  The right is reserved by the City to insist upon at least twenty four (24) hours notice prior 
to any interment, and to at least one week notice prior to any disinterment or removal. 
 
Subd. 6.  In order to maintain accuracy and consistency of the grave sites, the City requires 
interment preparation to be completed by a professional business.   
 
Subd. 7.  Lot owners are granted only the right of interment in their lots.  The City reserves the 
right to refuse  the interment of anyone who was not at the time of death, the owner of the lot or a 
relative of the  owner by blood or marriage. 
 
Subd. 8.  Lot owners shall not allow interments in their lots in return for remuneration of any kind. 
 

Commented [AB15]: Strike.  See definitions. 

71



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-8 
 

Subd. 9.  Acceptable burials for one gravesite include: 
• One casket burial. 
• Up to two cremains in one burial plot or columbarium niche. 
• One casket burial and one cremation burial. 
• Parent and child in one casket. 
• Two infants in one casket. 

 
Subd. 10.  In order to maintain a high standard of care and to eliminate sunken graves caused by 
the collapse of wooden boxes, it is required that all burials will be placed in acceptable vault 
structures. 
 
Subd.  11.  Urns selected for a columbarium niche must be sized to fit within the niche dimensions.  
If two urns will be housed in the niche, lot owners will need to ensure that two urns will fit within 
the limited area. 
 
Subd. 12.  All interments, disinterments, and removals must be made at the time, and in the manner, 
and upon charges fixed by the City. 
 
Subd. 13.  Only City staff has the authority to remove and re-install the granite niche fronts and 
will assume liability for damages while doing so. 
 
Subd. 14.  Besides being subject to these rules and regulations, all interments, disinterments, and 
removals are made subject to the orders and laws of the properly constituted public authorities. 
 
Subd. 15.  The City will in no way be liable for any delay in the interment of a body where a protest 
to the interment has been made, or where the rules and regulations are in noncompliance.  The City 
shall be under no duty to recognize any protests of interments unless in writing and filed with the 
City. 
 
Subd. 16.  The removal of cremains from the niche shall be considered a disinterment.  At that 
time, the niche shall be forfeited to the City of Hanover and resold.  The niche front with the bronze 
marker shall remain the property of the family.  The cost of replacing the niche front back to 
exactly how it was previously shall be the responsibility of the City. 
 
Subd. 17.  The City will not be liable for the Disposition Permit nor for the identity of the person 
sought to be interred. 
 
Subd. 18.  The City will not be liable for floral pieces, baskets, or frames for funeral services held 
in the Cemetery. 
 
 
 
 
2300.08 MEMORIALS AND MONUMENTS 
 

Commented [AB16]: Updated to included columbarium. 

Commented [AB17]: Added for columbarium. 

Commented [AB18]: Re-numbering 

Commented [AB19]: Will need to add the columbarium 
opening/closing fee to the 2020 Fee Schedule.  Proposed fee would 
be $50 during the work day and $100 for any occurrence outside of 
the work day to include weekends.  A staff member will need to be 
present to open the niche and then close it after the ceremony takes 
place.  Fee would be paid through the funeral home. 

Commented [AB20]: Added for columbarium. 

Commented [AB21]: Added for the columbarium. 

72



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-9 
 

Subd. 1.  These rules apply to all Memorial and Monument work.  Before placing an order with 
such a  company, care should be used in selecting a reputable dealer who understands the Hanover 
City Cemetery Policy so as to avoid difficulties which may arise in cases where memorial or 
monument work ordered does not comply. 
 
Subd. 2.  All markers, memorial or monument, placed in the Cemetery shall be of bronze, granite 
or marble.  No vertical joints therein will be permitted.  Columbarium markers shall be of bronze 
and purchased through the City-selected dealer.  While the columbarium marker is being installed, 
a temporary niche front will cover the vault and protect the cremains if interred. 
 
Subd. 3.  All Memorials or Monuments will be required to be installed within six (6) months of 
the interment of an individual.  Should this time frame occur or expire during winter months, it 
will be extended and completion of such work shall commence by May 31st. 
 
Subd. 4.  No lot owner shall erect or place, or cause to be erected or placed, on a lot in the Cemetery, 
any marker not approved by the City.  The City reserves the right to reject any Memorial or 
Monument by reason of failure to abide by the rules and regulations governing Memorials or 
Monuments and its installation. 
 
Subd. 5.  No coping, curbing, fencing, hedging, trees, shrubs, borders, or enclosures of any kind 
shall be allowed around any lot; and no walks of bricks, cinders, tile, terra cotta, sand, cement, 
gravel, or wood shall be allowed on any lot.  The City reserves the right to remove the same if so 
erected, planted, or placed. 
 
Subd. 6.  The United States Government furnishes markers for the graves of veterans of which 
there are two three types:  an upright monument which is 42 inches in height, and a flat memorial 
flush with the ground, and a bronze niche marker.  Crosses or other grave markers of wood, iron, 
cement, concrete, or any like material are strictly prohibited, except the standard bronze insignia 
provided for the graves of veterans. 
 
Subd. 7.  Any attachment to the granite of the columbarium, other than the identifying marker on 
the niche front, is not allowed.  
 
Subd.8.  Surface burial vaults, or so called, constructed of cement, concrete, artificial or cast stone 
will not be permitted in the Cemetery. 
 
Subd. 8.  All lettering shall be carefully spaced and accurately set in line, both vertically and 
horizontally, and must be uniform in width and height.  Incised lettering and engraving must be at 
least 3/16 of an inch in depth. 
 
Subd. 10.  All markers shall be set in the place and position determined by the City with a four (4) 
to six (6) inch concrete wash with sufficient gravel for leveling.  The City has created a concrete 
“sidewalk” for markers in Rows 12, 13, 14, and 15. 
 

Commented [AB22]: Updated for columbarium. 

Commented [AB23]: Markers for the columbarium need to be 
done after the death occurs otherwise there is an additional charge 
for the date of death.  On traditional granite monuments, everything 
can be inscribed prior and the date of death added later. 

Commented [AB24]: Updated to include columbarium option. 

Commented [AB25]: Updated for the columbarium. 

Commented [AB26]: Re-numbering. 

Commented [AB27]: Strike.  Some washes have already been 
poured and it would look patchworked.  Rows 14 & 15 have been 
eliminated due to the columbarium location. 

73



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-10 
 

Subd. 11.  Markers may be of flat or upright type.  Monuments may not exceed 60 inches in height.  
The base of the marker must meet the wash requirement in Section 4.08 Subd. 9.  No part of the 
marker shall overhang any area of the wash. 
 
Subd. 12.  Should any marker become unsightly, dilapidated, or a menace to life and limb, the City 
reserves the right to remove or repair same.  Any cost incurred shall be at the expense of the lot 
owners. 
 
Subd. 13.  Persons engaged in erecting monuments or other structures are prohibited from 
attaching ropes to monuments, trees and shrubs; from scattering their material over adjoining lots; 
from blocking avenues of pathways; or from leaving their materials on the grounds longer than is 
absolutely necessary.  A canvas must be used for the placing of all excavated material.  This must 
be done with little injury as possible to the grass, trees, and shrubs.  All debris must be removed 
and the ground and sod restored to its original condition. 
  
Subd. 14.  When heavy material is to be moved over paths or grass, planks must be laid for 
protection.  The City reserves the right to refuse such work unless the grounds are thoroughly 
settled and in good condition. 
 
Subd. 15.  When a funeral or interment is being conducted nearby, all work of any description 
must cease. 
 
Subd. 16.  A footstone marker will be allowed in order to accommodate a brass veteran’s marker 
or a marker for a cremation burial on a traditional burial plot.  The marker must be set in a concrete 
wash and be flush to the ground. 
 
2300.09 SEASONAL MEMORIALS 
 
Subd. 1.  Placing boxes, shells, toys, metalwork, ornaments, chairs, settees, or similar articles upon 
the burial plot will not be permitted.  The City reserves the right to remove any articles deemed 
unacceptable. 
 
Subd. 2.  The ground planting of flowers by lot owners or relatives is not permitted.  Potted plants 
must be in a plant stand or alongside the marker, and must not be sunk into the ground.  Plant or 
wreath stands may be placed within 12 inches from the marker. 
 
Subd. 3.  Glass containers, of all kinds, and cans are prohibited on the burial plot.  If placed thereon, 
such  items will be removed by the City. 
 
Subd. 4.  The City shall have the authority to remove all flowers, weeds, trees, shrubs, plants or 
herbage of any kind from the Cemetery that have become unsightly, dangerous, detrimental or 
diseased, or if  not conforming to the standards maintained. 
 
Subd. 5.  The City shall not be liable for floral pieces, baskets, or frames in which or to which 
floral items are attached.  The City shall not be liable for lost, misplaced or broken flower vases, 

Commented [AB28]: Corrected. 

74



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-11 
 

artificial flowers, baskets, frames or any item that may have been placed by the lot owner or 
relatives. 
 
Subd. 6.  The placement of flowers, plants and artificial flowers are as follows: 

• Seasonal memorials may be placed on burial plots from May 15th through October 15th. 
• Winter memorials may be placed on the burial plots from December 1st until March 1st. 
• All flowers, plants, and artificial flowers must be placed in non-glass containers, in a 

plant stand or upon the concrete marker base. 
• No separate concrete base or pad is permitted. 
• Artificial flowers must be securely fastened to a stand or container. 
• Flags and markers placed to acknowledge military service may be kept at the burial 

plot year round. 

2300.10 GENERAL CARE AND MAINTENANCE 
 
Subd. 1.  The general care of the Cemetery is assured by the City.  General care includes mowing 
the grass at reasonable intervals, raking and cleaning the grounds, and pruning shrubs and trees.  
The general preservation of the lots, grounds, walks, roadways, boundaries, and structures shall 
remain and be  reasonably cared for as Cemetery grounds forever. 
 
Subd. 2.  The general care assumed by the City shall in no case mean the maintenance, repair, or 
replacement of any marker placed or erected upon lots.  Including, but not withstanding, of any 
special or unusual work caused by impoverishment of the soil; the reconstruction of any marble, 
granite, bronze or concrete work on any section or plot; or any portion(s) thereof on the Cemetery 
caused by the elements, an act of God, common enemy, thieves, vandals, strikers, malicious 
mischief makers, explosions, unavoidable accidents, invasions, insurrections, riots, or by the order 
of military or authority, whether the damage be direct or collateral. 
 
2300.11 CONDUCT AND USE OF CEMETARY 
 
Subd. 1.  Persons visiting the Cemetery shall enter or leave by using the driveways.  Persons should 
not use other means of entering. 
 
Subd. 2.  Persons visiting the Cemetery may do so during the hours between 7 am and sunset. 
 
 
Subd. 3.  Persons visiting the Cemetery or attending funerals or interments are strictly prohibited 
from: 

• Picking flowers of any sort whether cultivated, wild, or on a burial plot. 
• Breaking or injuring any tree, shrub or plant. 
• Writing upon, defacing, or injuring any memorial, fence, or other structure within the 

Cemetery grounds. 
• Allowing pets on the Cemetery grounds and defecation is strictly forbidden. 
• Throwing of rubbish on the drives, paths, or any part of the Cemetery grounds. 
• Removing seasonal memorial items from burial plots unless it is the lot owner or 

relative. 

75



 

 

Chapter 2300 – Cemetery Policy 
 

 

2300-12 
 

 
Subd. 4.  It is of the utmost importance that there should be strict observance of the properties in 
the Cemetery.  Hence, all persons within the Cemetery should avoid conduct unbecoming a sacred 
 place.  The following are expressly forbidden: 

• Loud and boisterous verbal utterances. 
• Improper conduct. 
• Idling or loafing on the grounds. 
• Interactive gaming. 
• Consuming food or refreshments within the Cemetery grounds. 
• Peddling or soliciting the sale of any commodity with the Cemetery. 
• Placing of signs, notices, or advertisements of any kind within the Cemetery. 

 

Subd. 5.  Motorized vehicles are prohibited from the following: 
• Driving through the Cemetery entrance at speeds in excess of 5 mph. 
• Driving or parking across or upon any grave, lot or lawn. 
• Parking or leaving any vehicle on the driveway or road right-of-ways within the 

Cemetery at such location or in such position as to prevent any other vehicle from 
passing the same. 

• Overnight parking is not permitted from sundown to sunrise. 
• Using the Cemetery grounds or any road therein as a public thoroughfare. 

 
Subd. 6.  Special cases may arise in which the enforcement of a rule may impose unnecessary 
hardship.  The City hereby reserves the right to make exceptions, suspensions, or modifications of 
any rule or  regulation.  No temporary exception, suspension, or modification shall in no way 
be construed as a permanent change to the established rules and regulations. 
 
 

76



NS62 - NS135

NS61 - NS134

NS60 - NS133

NS58 - NS131

NS56- NS129

NS57- NS130

Ns59- NS60 Ns59- NS60

Bronze Niche Fronts for ColumbariumBronze Niche Fronts for Columbarium

Individual Companion

77



NS16

NS-AA-107

NS-AA-106

NS48 NS49

NS43 NS44

78



NS3

NS27 NS36

NS32NS31
79



Community Room:  No Alcohol

Damage Deposit 200.00$          
Rental Fee 200.00$          

Community Room: With Alcohol

Damage Deposit 200.00$          
Rental Fee 350.00$          
Set Up Fee 100.00$          
*Deputy Fee Current Rate

Civic & Non-Profit Organizations
Meet Occasionally with kitchen 50.00$            per meeting

Other Rental Options
Benefit/Fundraiser:  No Liquor 100.00$          
Benefit/Fundraiser:  Liquor/Dance 125.00$           + deputy fee
Kitchen use only 50.00$            
Funeral Receptions:  No Alcohol 100.00$          
Conference Room Only:  No Alcohol 25.00$            

Organizations Exempt from Rental Fees
City of Hanover Hanover Fire Department                     Hanover Historical Society
Crow River Lions Hanover Golden Age Club                     Hanover Lions
Hanover Athletic Association Hanover Harvest Festival                     Hanover Youth Ball

SETTLERS PARK SHELTER RENTAL FEES:  Full payment is required at time of reservation.
Damage Deposit 100.00$          
Rental Fee 134.21$          Includes Tax

*required if liquor & dance: Deputy on duty (4 hrs)

2020 Fee Schedule
City of Hanover

CITY HALL RENTAL FEES:  Complete payment is due 60 days prior to event.

*If the hall is rented the following day after an event, the organization is responsible for paying for a
special cleaning and will be invoiced by the City.

   *If same group is also renting City Hall, damage deposit for shelter is waived.

*Deputy fee is determined by the Wright County Sheriff's Department and may be subject
   to change without notice.

80



MISCELLANEOUS FEES:
Cemetery Lots
Traditional Burial:  Resident 750.00$         
Traditional Burial:  Non-Resident 1,000.00$      
Cremation Lot 650.00$         
Locating / Staking Fee for in-ground burials 50.00$           per trip
Columbarium Niche
Opening/Closing of Columbarium Niche: ???
   Monday through Friday during business hours 50.00$           
   Outside of business hours including weekends 100.00$         

Other Administrative Fees
Copies of Public Information $   0.25/0.50 (black & white/color) 
Copies of Public Information (on CD) 5.00$             
Faxes 1.00$             per page
Compost Site Replacement Key Fob 5.00$             
Return/NSF Checks 30.00$           
ACH Return Fee 10.00$           
Stop Payment Fee 25.00$           
Special Assessment Search 25.00$           Per PID#
Administrative Citation of Code Offense 100.00$         First Occurance
Administrative Citation Appeal Hearing to Officer 50.00$           if violation is confirmed
Election Recount 1,000.00$      escrow

(Discretionary - candidate responsible for actual costs)

Staff Billing Rates
Clerical 50.00$           per hour
Accounting 65.00$           per hour
Public Works 65.00$           per hour
City Admistrator 80.00$           per hour
City Planner  current rate schedule
City Engineer  current rate schedule
City Attorney  current rate schedule
Special City Council/Board/Commission meeting 250.00$         plus staff/consultant costs

2020 Fee Schedule

81



BUILDING PERMITS:
Building Permit Fees  1997 UBC Fee Schedule

Plan Review Fee plus 65% of 1997 UBC Fee Schedule
"Master Plan" Review Fee plus 25% of 1997 UBC Fee Schedule
ISTS Site Review Fee 100.00$          
Septic Permit Fee 175.00$          
Re-inspection Fee 50.00$            

Minor Residential Maintenance 95.00$            plus current State surcharge
(door, same opening window replacement, siding, roof)
Minor Inside Residential Maintenance 50.00$            plus  current State surcharge
(bath fans, other venting, gas fittings)

Residential Fireplace Permits
     Solid Fuel Burning & Masonry  1997 UBC Fee Schedule
     Gas Fired Mechanical 85.00$            plus current State surcharge
Residential Furnace/AC/Softner 50.00$            per unit plus  current State surcharge
Residential Water Heater 50.00$            plus current State surcharge

Plumbing Permit
     Residential 50.00$            base fee plus $9.00 per fixture plus State surcharge
     Commercial  1997 UBC Fee Schedule
Mechanical Permit (Commercial)  1997 UBC Fee Schedule

Fire Suppression System Permit  1997 UBC Fee Schedule
     Plan Review Fee plus 65% of 1997 UBC Fee Schedule
Fire Alarm System Permit  1997 UBC Fee Schedule
     Plan Review Fee plus 65% of 1997 UBC Fee Schedule

Sign Permit
Permanent Signs  1997 UBC Fee Schedule

Demolition Permit 100.00$          residential
200.00$          commercial

Fence Permit
Over 6'  1997 UBC Fee Schedule
Under 6' Administrative Permit

Residential Landscape Escrow 2,000.00$      per unit
Residential Erosion Control Escrow 2,000.00$      per unit 
Residential Infrastructure Escrow 1,000.00$      per unit
Non-Residential Landscape Escrow Will handle on case by case basis
Non-Residential Infrastructure Escrow Will handle on case by case basis
Non-Residential Erosion Control Escrow Will handle on case by case basis
Escrow Inspection Fee 50.00$            per re-inspection required after initial request
*All full-size plan sheets submitted for new construction must be provided both in paper and electronically.
Failure to provide an electronic version will result in a $50 increase to the permit fee for scanning.

2020 Fee Schedule

82



DEVELOPMENT FEES AND CONNECTION CHARGES:
Sanitary Sewer Trunk Fee 2,270.00$      per unit

Water Trunk Fee 903.00$          per unit 

Storm Sewer Trunk Fee 0.08$              per square foot
Park Dedication Fee 3,272.00$      per unit 
Storm Warning Siren Fee 68.63$            per acre

Connection Permit Charges: 
Sewer Permit Fee 125.00$          
Sewer Connection Fee (SAC) 5,545.00$      per SAC unit St. Michael will be increasing their

portion, we will adjust accordingly
Water Permit Fee 125.00$          
Water Connection Fee (WAC) 2,241.00$      per WAC unit
Water Meter Fee 550.00$          prices will be increasing

Utility Rates
Water Distribution Rates 1.45$              City portion base fee per month

1.04$              City portion per 1,000 gallons
Jt. Powers portion per Jt. Powers current fee schedule

Sewer Rates (City Potion) 31.76$            minimum per month (up to 7,000 gallons)
6.31$              per 1,000 gallons over 7,000 gallons

Storm Water Utility Rate 102.00$          per REF per year, capped at 2 acres

Examples of Storm Water Fee on Various Parcels:
Neighborhood Residential 34.00$          Per lot
Rural Residential 34.00$          Per lot
Commercial/Downtown commercial 173.40$        Per acre
Industrial 193.80$        Per acre
Public/Institutional 102.00$        Per acre
Parks/Open Space 30.60$          Per acre
Agricultural 30.60$          Per acre

Late Fee Per Joint Powers Fee Schedule
Water Shut-off/Turn-on Fee $35.00

2020 Fee Schedule

83



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT:
Tax Increment Financing Fee Schedule
Pre-Application No fee
Final Application $12,000 with funds placed in an escrow and any

portion remaining following payment for a fiscal advisor,
legal and economic development consulting, remainder
to be returned to applicant.

Annual Fee Depending on size of the district, the City will generally 
retain up to 10% of the annual tax increment for
administration of the TIF district. This includes annual
reports to the county, school district, official newspaper
and State Auditor's Office.

Tax Abatement Fee Schedule
Pre-Application No fee
Final Application $6,500 with funds placed in an escrow and any portion

remaining following payment for fiscal advisor, legal 
and economic development consulting; remainder to
be returned to applicant.

FEES FOR EMERGENCY PROTECTION FIRE SERVICES:
Fire Department False Alarm Fee $150 third false alarm within 12 mos (Jan - Dec)
      Additional False Alarms Add-On Fee $100 added to each fee after third during same 12 mos

Ex: 3rd false alarm - $150, 4th - $250, 5th - $350, etc.
Engine Up to 4 Personnel 275.00$    per hour
Ladder/Aerial Up to 4 Personnel 275.00$    per hour
Water Tender Up to 2 Personnel 200.00$    per hour
Heavy Rescue/Rescue/Ambulance Up to 2 Personnel 185.00$    per hour
Command Vehicle/Utility Truck/Grass Truck Up to 2 Personnel 85.00$      per hour
ATV/UTV with Water Tank Up to 2 Personnel 50.00$      per hour
Extra Personnel 15.00$      per hour
County Special Response Unit 500.00$    per hour
County Fire Investigation Team 300.00$    per hour

2020 Fee Schedule

                      
filing of the TIF plan with the State, and legal fees for preparation of the Development Agreement.

84



PLANNING AND ZONING:
Base Escrow

Annexation 300.00$          3,000.00$    

Appeals 250.00$          500.00$        

Comprehensive Plan Amendment 300.00$          500.00$        
Flood Use Permit 300.00$          500.00$        
Ordinance Amendment (text or map) 300.00$          500.00$        
PUD Concept Plan 300.00$          1,000.00$    
PUD General Plan 300.00$          2,000.00$    
PUD Final Plan 300.00$          1,000.00$    
Administrative Lot Split/Consolidation 300.00$          500.00$        
  *Fee & escrow for administrative lot split/consolidation does not include park dedication fees
    or other development fees. See Subdivision Ordinance for more details.
Site Plan Review 300.00$          750.00$        
Administrative Site Plan Amendment 100.00$          200.00$        
Sketch Plan Review 250.00$          500.00$        
Conditional Use Permit 300.00$          2,000.00$    
Interim Use Permit 300.00$          2,000.00$    
Variance 300.00$          1,000.00$    
Concept Plan Review 300.00$          1,500.00$    
Preliminary Plat - Residential

(up to 50 lots) 400.00$          15,000.00$  
(51-100 lots) 400.00$          15,000.00$  plus $250/lot > 50
(101-200 lots) 400.00$          27,500.00$  plus $200/lot > 100
(over 200 lots) 400.00$          47,500.00$  plus $150/lot > 200

Preliminary Plat - Commercial/Industrial
(0-10 acres) 400.00$          10,000.00$  
(11-20 acres) 400.00$          15,000.00$  
(21-40 acres) 400.00$          20,000.00$  
(40 + acres) 400.00$          25,000.00$  

Final Plat 300.00$          3,000.00$    
Vacation 300.00$          500.00$        
Administrative Permit 50.00$            100.00$        
Environmental Review 300.00$          10,000.00$  (EAW,EIS,AUAR)
Wetland Mitigation 300.00$          2,000.00$    
A 10% Administration Fee will be charged at the time of development agreement for subdivions.

1) Posted escrows shall be used to cover City expenses associated with the review of applications, including staff

     and consulting staff (Attorney, Engineer, Planner, and/or Others).

2) Actual costs not fully paid or reimbursed from the base fee shall be paid or reimbursed from the escrow deposit.

3) All escrows shown above represent funds sufficient for a typical review of an application. City staff, after reviewing the application, may require 

     a higher escrow based on the complexity of an application. Staff will provide a justification for the higher escrow requirement to the applicant.

4) Failure to pay an outstanding escrow may result in the City certifying the outstanding  escrow to the County Auditor for collection through the

      property tax or the City placing a lien in the amount of the outstanding escrow on the property.

5) It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to contact the City, in writing, to request the return of any unused portion of the escrow deposit.
6) Applicants for Special Meetings are responsible for consulting staff fees associated with meeting attendance.

7) All full-size sheets submitted must be provided both in paper and electronically. Failure to provide an electronic version will result in a $50.00 
     charge to the escrow for  scanning.

2020 Fee Schedule

85



OTHER PERMITS/LICENSES:

Cat or Dog Impound Fees As billed by Animal Shelter

Solid Waste Haulers License 250.00$         (6 licenses available)
Recycling Haulers License -$               (1 license available)

Utility Permit 100.00$         Fee + $75 per bore hole
Small Site Stormwater Permit 50.00$           
Large Site Stormwater Permit 200.00$         Base + Erosion Control Escrow
Grading Permit (no building permit) Will handle on case by case basis
Erosion Control Plan Security Will handle on case by case basis
Street Sweeping 100.00$         per hour

Rental Housing License (2 year)  Multi-Unit 75.00$           plus inspection fees
Charitable Gambling Premises Permit 100.00$         
Excluded or Exempt Gambling Permits 100.00$         
Peddler, Solicitor, Transient Merchant License 50.00$           per application
Tattooing/Body Piercing Permit 250.00$         per year
Pawn Broker License 5,000.00$      per year + Investigation fee
Adult Use/Sexually Oriented Business License 12,000.00$   per year + investigation fee

Liquor Licenses
Intoxicating Liquor Off-Sale License 100.00$         
Intoxicating Liquor On-Sale License 3,100.00$      
Intoxicating Liquor Sunday License 200.00$         
Intoxicating Liquor Temporary License 50.00$           plus any state fees
3.2% Malt Liquor Off-Sale License 110.00$         
3.2% Malt Liquor On-Sale License 35.00$           
3.2% Malt Liquor Temporary License 25.00$           
Wine License On-Sale 1,550.00$      
Investigation Fee 300.00$         
Surety Bond 3,000.00$      
Duplicate License 10.00$           

2020 Fee Schedule

86



 
 

 
City of Hanover 11250 5th St NE, Hanover, MN 55341 | (p) (763) 497-3777 (f) (763) 497-1873 | cityhall@ci.hanover.mn.us 
 

To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Re:  2020 Final Budget - Draft 1 
 
Date:  November 14, 2019 
 
Enclosed you will find the first draft of the 2020 Final Budget.  I have made minimal changes from the 
approved Preliminary Levy.  The changes have resulted in an approximate $3,000 decrease from the levy 
due to operational adjustments.  Wright County was able to provide us with our final tax capacity number 
which reflects closely to what we were using as an assumption during the Preliminary Budget. 
 
Our Truth in Taxation Meeting is scheduled on the December 3rd.  Should Council desire, we could have 
a resolution prepared adopting the 2020 Final Budget. 

87



Account Description Category 2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Budget
10-31-19 
Actual

% of 
Budget 2020 Budget

%  
Change Comments

100-31000 Property Taxes - City TAXES 940,618        1,026,640     783,871        842,144        884,973        1,019,659     553,429        1,015,273     
100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire Dept TAXES 99,864          95,624          112,838        111,200        129,904        101,578        50,789          104,404        
100-31800 Franchise Fees TAXES 12,194          13,150          14,500          15,759          15,057          15,000          7,276            15,000          

Total Taxes 1,052,676     1,135,414     911,209        969,103        1,029,934     1,136,237     611,493        54% 1,134,677     0%
100-32110 Alcoholic Beverages LIC PERM 10,370          10,370          10,420          10,420          7070 10,370 5,820 6,870 5 Liquor License Renewals
100-32180 Other Bus. Lic. & Permits LIC PERM 700               362               482               2,870            1790 1,000 1,025 1,000 Utility Permits/Solicitors License
100-32210 Building Permits LIC PERM 154,881        139,675        180,198        82,122          87711 100,000 92,241 100,000
100-32240 Animal Licenses LIC PERM 120               260               200               100               0 0 0 0
100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses LIC PERM 1,000            500               1,500            1,500            1500 1,500 1,500 1,500
100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses LIC PERM 1,050            -                1,215            90                 1180 0 0 1,000
100-32280 Other Non-Bus. Lic. & Permits LIC PERM 37                 45                 55                 66                 47 50 25 50 Burn Permits

Total Lic Perm 168,158        151,212        194,070        97,168          99,298          112,920        100,611        89% 110,420 -2%
100-33400 State Grants and Aid INTGOVT 2,915            38,757          -                30,772          27,989          -                4,715            -                
100-33401 Local Gov't Aid (LGA) INTGOVT 100,494        105,859        107,496        108,169        117,651        118,253        59,125          124,773        actual amount
100-33410 MV Credit INTGOVT 1,297            1,866            1,697            1,583            1,319            -                -                1,000            
100-33420 PERA Aid INTGOVT 339               339               339               339               339               339               170               339               
100-33422 State Fire Aid INTGOVT 36,371          42,219          39,121          37,428          39,020          39,000          41,187          39,000          estimate
100-33426 State Police Aid INTGOVT 5,265            5,566            5,729            5,911            5,984            5,500            6,283            5,500            estimate
100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads INTGOVT 14,488          13,342          -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total Intgovt 161,169        207,947        154,382        184,202        192,302        163,092        111,480        68% 170,612        5%
100-34000 Charges for Service SERVICE 16,643          -                -                -                3,759            -                5,335            5,000            Cleanup Day
100-34101 City Hall Rentals SERVICE 6,700            8,915            8,315            10,698          12,699          10,000          12,875          11,000          
100-34107 Assessment Searches SERVICE 350               475               400               750               775               600               625               600               
100-34108 Administrative Fees SERVICE 2,710            2,447            2,433            3,300            5,756            3,000            4,950            3,000            
100-34109 Copies/Faxes SERVICE 83                 15                 127               35                 48                 50                 3                   50                 
100-34206 Other Public Safety Charges SERVICE 250               415               -                620               -                Fire Emergency Services Fees
100-34207 Fire Protection SERVICE 105,899        107,464        104,785        114,825        141,161        110,755        76,027          107,573        reflects only operating portion
100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb SERVICE 26                 6,902            6,372            6,928            6,149            6,000            3,707            6,000            Grants from the Counties
100-34780 Park Shelter Rental Fees SERVICE 3,013            2,805            2,687            2,220            2,050            2,500            1,654            2,500            
100-34940 Cemetery Revenues SERVICE 2,950            1,950            3,700            6,050            3,500            2,000            12,150          Move this to Cemtery Cap. Fund

Total Service 138,374        130,973        128,819        145,057        176,312        134,905        112,612        83% 130,723        -3%
100-35100 Court Fines FINES 315               2,643            2,254            5,167            6,725            3,000            2,755            3,000            

Total Fines 315               2,643            2,254            5,167            6,725            3,000            2,755            92% 3,000            0%
100-36100 Special Assessments MISC 54                 429               2,013            856               -                -                -                -                Lawn Mowing assessed
100-36200 Misc Revenues MISC    2,592            13,012          10,454          1,733            2,748            100               1,006            100               Compost Card Replacements
100-36210 Interest Earnings MISC (528)              36,318          16,286          19,127          11,113          -                4,249            -                
100-36215 Investment Income/Loss MISC 7,518            (100)              (1,872)           (2,872)           (2,235)           -                5,575            -                
100-36218 Grants MISC 6,280            -                
100-36230 Contributions & Donations MISC 2,075            8,597            6,000            2,425            375               400               1,360            400               HAA no longer due to 10% req.
100-36235 Insurance Dividends MISC 5,123            11,500          12,801          3,109            1,429            4,000            -                
100-36250 Damage Deposits MISC 7,441            6,501            100               -                -                -                10,850          9,000            
100-36260 Refunds or Reimbursements MISC -                -                4                   181               419               -                20                 -                

Final Levy Certification
2020 General Operating Revenue Budget

88



100-36291 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment MISC 100               -                1,702            773               -                -                392               -                
100-39101 Sales of General Fixed Assets MISC 120,917        -                -                -                -                -                
100-39203 Transfers from Other Funds MISC -                -                19,200          -                -                -                -                -                

Total Misc 24,375          82,538          187,606        25,334          13,849          4,500            23,452          521% 9,500            111%

Total Revenue 1,545,068     1,710,727     1,578,339     1,426,030     1,518,420     1,554,654     962,402        62% 1,558,932 0.28%

89



Account Description Category 2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Budget
10-31-19 
Actual

% of 
Budget 2020 Budget

% 
Change

Dollar 
Change Comments

General Government
100-41110-111 Committe Wages COUNCIL 9,359            9,881            10,692          11,967          10,500          13,000          7,044            13,000             0
100-41110-122 FICA COUNCIL 572               632               658               740               623               806               435               806                  0
100-41110-123 Medicare COUNCIL 134               143               154               173               146               189               102               189                  (1)
100-41110-208 Training & Instruction COUNCIL -               365               -               575               345               1,000            1,300            2,000               1,000
100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions COUNCIL 2,912            6,488            7,856            6,507            7,079            7,500            7,008            7,500               0
100-41110-331 Travel Expenses COUNCIL 160               76                 -               138               752               1,000            1,489            2,000               1,000
100-41110-437 Discretionary Miscellaneous COUNCIL 5,701            3,128            11,287          6,035            3,880            20,000          531               18,000             (2,000)

Total Council 18,888          20,766          30,646          26,136          23,324          43,495          17,908          41% 43,495             0% (1)                 
100-41330-111 Committe Wages BRDS & COMM 2,820            2,820            3,270            4,380            3,000            5,000            -               5,000               0
100-41330-208 Training & Instruction BRDS & COMM -               -               -               -               -               -               150               500                  500
100-41330-331 Travel Expenses BRDS & COMM 18                 21                 -               -               -               -               -               200                  200

Total Brds & Comm 2,838            2,936            3,270            4,380            3,000            5,000            150               0                5,700               14% 700               
100-41400-101 Full-Time Wages CITY ADMIN 63,612          75,707          67,580          69,612          72,339          75,642          58,535          78,668             3,026
100-41400-121 PERA CITY ADMIN 4,553            5,870            5,043            5,217            5,400            5,673            4,534            5,900               227
100-41400-122 FICA CITY ADMIN 3,894            4,852            4,169            4,313            4,464            4,690            3,742            4,877               187
100-41400-123 Medicare CITY ADMIN 911               1,135            975               1,009            1,044            1,097            875               1,141               44
100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life CITY ADMIN 1,073            414               368               380               520               385               529               674                  289 estimate: Life + LTD/STD
100-41400-151 Health Insurance Premium CITY ADMIN 5,676            5,237            8,372            8,401            8,319            8,400            7,000            8,400               0 monthly allotment
100-41400-208 Training & Instruction CITY ADMIN 561               1,310            410               681               1,304            1,500            1,195            1,500               0
100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions CITY ADMIN 445               256               267               254               145               250               135               200                  (50)

Total City Admin 82,640          98,574          87,184          89,866          93,534          97,637          76,546          78% 101,360           4% 3,723            
100-41410-101 Part-Time Wages ELECTION 13,500             13,500 Temp for AB Voting/Elect. Day
100-41410-122 FICA ELECTION 837                  837
100-41410-123 Medicare ELECTION 196                  196
100-41410-200 Office Supplies ELECTION 3,005            -               1,631            64                 4,085            100               (1,651)          5,000               4,900 Supplies and voting booth upgrades
100-41410-310 Other Professional Services ELECTION 5,317            79                 4,016            -               3,879            -               -               5,000               5,000 Judge Wages 3 Elections (PNP fees reimbursed)
100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishing ELECTION 279               -               174               -               64                 -               -               200                  200
100-41410-400 Repairs & Maintenance Cont ELECTION -               -               1,014            1,652            1,658            2,000            1,602            1,200               (800) WC Equipment Maint.

Total Election 8,601            79                 6,835            1,716            9,686            2,100            (50)               -2% 25,933             1135% 23,833          
100-41430-101 Full-Time Wages CLERICAL 80,994          53,307          42,267          43,842          46,042          48,004          37,195          49,926             1,922
100-41430-121 PERA CLERICAL 5,711            3,798            3,154            3,285            3,436            3,600            2,881            3,744               144
100-41430-122 FICA CLERICAL 5,607            3,715            2,607            2,716            2,840            2,976            2,376            3,095               119
100-41430-123 Medicare CLERICAL 1,311            869               610               635               664               696               556               724                  28
100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life CLERICAL (3,996)          1,581            1,309            1,402            1,495            1,540            359               456                  (1,084) estimate: Life + LTD/STD
100-41430-151 Health Insurance Premium CLERICAL 10,443          7,844            8,400            8,401            8,400            8,400            7,000            8,400               0 monthly allotment
100-41430-208 Training & Instruction CLERICAL -               255               -               -               500               180               500                  0
100-41430-306 Dues & Subscriptions CLERICAL -               -               18                 23                 100               45                 100                  0

Total Clerical 115,462        74,280          58,602          60,298          62,900          65,816          50,592          77% 66,946             2% 1,130            
100-41435-260 Uniforms STAFF EXP 224               -               -               -               200               300               246               300                  0
100-41435-310 Other Professional Services STAFF EXP 578               787               1,157            373               240               500               150               500                  0
100-41435-331 Travel Expenses STAFF EXP 561               1,277            589               750               953               2,000            1,053            2,000               0

Total Staff Exp 2,620            3,290            1,746            1,124            1,393            2,800            1,448            52% 2,800               0% -               
100-41530-101 Full-Time Wages ACCNT -               24,895          51,158          51,257          53,275          55,692          43,095          57,920             2,228
100-41530-121 PERA ACCNT -               1,800            3,818            3,491            3,978            4,177            3,338            4,344               167
100-41530-122 FICA ACCNT -               1,446            2,941            3,096            3,274            3,453            2,759            3,591               138
100-41530-123 Medicare ACCNT -               338               688               724               766               808               645               840                  32
100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life ACCNT 348               980               820               1,035            1,060            415               527                  (533) estimate: Life + LTD/STD
100-41530-151 Health Insurance Premium ACCNT -               3,322            10,800          8,500            8,366            8,400            6,703            8,400               0 monthly allotment
100-41530-208 Training & Instruction ACCNT -               690               285               210               1,000            285               1,000               0
100-41530-306 Dues & Subscriptions ACCNT -               235               123               89                 250               50                 250                  0
100-41530-310 Other Professional Services ACCNT -               35,468          2,457            6,211            3,251            2,500            3,138            3,200               700 Audit Review by AEM, continue on?

Total Accnt -               68,471          73,767          74,507          74,243          77,340          60,429          78% 80,071             4% 2,731            

Final Levy Certification
2020 General Operating Expenditure Budget

90



100-41540-301 Auditing & Accounting AUDITING 27,812          23,400          29,243          24,065          21,050          22,000          22,150          22,000             0 Audit Costs
Total Auditing & Accounting 27,812          23,400          29,243          24,065          21,050          22,000          22,150          101% 22,000             0% -               

100-41550-310 Other Professional Services ASSESSING 17,328          17,772          17,828          18,942          20,610          21,000          21,037          23,000             2,000
Total Assesing 17,328          17,772          17,828          18,942          20,610          21,000          21,037          100% 23,000             10% 2,000            

100-41570-200 Office Supplies PURCHASING 1,128            3,146            3,077            2,581            2,681            3,500            502               3,500               0
100-41570-205 Bank Fees PURCHASING 74                 49                 187               387               (15)               200               92                 200                  0
100-41570-207 Computer Supplies PURCHASING 4,284            3,092            5,876            11,453          5,256            6,000            6,463            8,000               2,000
100-41570-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply PURCHASING 1,939            2,367            3,670            2,751            3,927            4,000            4,093            4,500               500 Office Copier Contract Cost
100-41570-322 Postage PURCHASING 951               2,463            2,840            2,267            1,867            2,500            1,223            2,500               0
100-41570-570 Office Equipment/Furniture PURCHASING 120               210               -               9,611            1,122            3,000            -               3,000               0

Total Purchasing 8,496            11,326          15,650          29,049          14,838          19,200          12,374          64% 21,700             13% 2,500            
100-41600-310 Other Professional Services COMPUTER -               2,542            4,616            7,446            5,000            4,518            6,000               1,000

Total Computer 4,693            3,693            2,542            4,616            7,446            5,000            4,518            90% 6,000               20% 1,000            
100-41610-304 Legal Fees ATTORNEY 20,536          18,947          25,247          21,223          12,540          23,500          7,592            20,000             (3,500)

Total Attorney 20,536          18,947          25,247          21,223          12,540          23,500          7,592            32% 20,000             -15% (3,500)          
100-41910-310 Other Professional Services PLANNING & ZONING 26,511          19,945          24,771          25,492          27,194          25,000          22,763          20,000             (5,000)

Total Planning & Zoning 26,511          19,945          24,771          25,492          27,194          25,000          22,763          91% 20,000             -20% (5,000)          
100-41940-210 Operating Supplies BLDG & GRNDS 2,494            617               1,567            1,080            -               2,000            -               3,000               1,000 cleaning supplies, garbage bags, etc.
100-41940-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply BLDG & GRNDS (3,187)          9,461            10,286          7,361            9,192            7,000            5,928            6,000               (1,000)
100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions BLDG & GRNDS 250               250               250               250               620               525               525               550                  25 Liquor License, Drug Tests, Fuel Card
100-41940-310 Other Professional Services BLDG & GRNDS 6,998            6,016            7,208            7,214            7,244            7,500            4,249            7,500               0 cleaning contract and pest control
100-41940-321 Telephone BLDG & GRNDS 4,476            3,282            3,139            4,204            7,918            6,400            3,543            6,400               0 Comcast
100-41940-325 Taxes BLDG & GRNDS 258               220               214               349               262               500               25                 400                  (100) sales and use tax
100-41940-381 Electric Utilities BLDG & GRNDS 8,927            14,122          8,917            8,793            14,332          9,600            7,672            9,000               (600) City Hall
100-41940-383 Gas Utilities BLDG & GRNDS 6,698            3,642            3,047            5,100            9,401            5,000            2,635            5,000               0 City Hall
100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Disposal BLDG & GRNDS (502)             2,540            2,552            2,937            2,884            3,500            2,577            3,000               (500) City Hall, PW, FD
100-41940-415 Other Equipment Rental BLDG & GRNDS -               121               -               -               -               -               -               -                   0
100-41940-520 Buildings & Structures BLDG & GRNDS 5,591            5,346            3,402            2,112            9,831            4,000            1,794            4,000               0
100-41940-560 Furniture & Fixtures BLDG & GRNDS 535               1,961            242               2,069            1,450            2,000            4,743            2,000               0
100-41940-580 Other Equipment BLDG & GRNDS 308               1,263            226               -               7,942            -               -               -                   0

Total Bldg & Grnds 32,848          48,842          41,048          41,468          71,076          48,025          33,691          70% 46,850             -2% (1,175)          
100-41950-303 Engineering Fee ENGINEERING 19,613          23,493          25,659          16,135          14,179          20,000          20,997          10,000             (10,000) No Comp. Plan

Total Engineering 19,613          23,493          25,659          16,135          14,179          20,000          20,997          105% 10,000             -50% (10,000)        
100-41960-150 Workers Comp Premium INSURANCE 845               259               8,543            9,376            14,254          18,000          13,130          13,000             (5,000) entire City less Fire Department estimate
100-41960-361 General Liability Insurance INSURANCE 24,476          24,785          19,245          21,536          21,498          25,000          23,660          25,000             0 entire City less Fire Department estimate

Total Insur 27,982          25,045          27,788          30,912          35,753          43,000          36,790          86% 38,000             -12% (5,000)          
100-41970-341 Employment LEGAL PUB 235               435               274               362               -               300               -               300                  0
100-41970-343 Other Advertising LEGAL PUB 38                 -               39                 104               40                 100               119               200                  100 WC Journal Subscription
100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishing LEGAL PUB 1,621            768               1,814            337               274               1,000            200               2,000               1,000 Election Year
100-41970-354 Recording Fees LEGAL PUB 441               -               -               53                 166               250               53                 250                  0

Total Legal Pub 2,336            1,203            2,127            856               480               1,650            371               22% 2,750               67% 1,100            
100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursements DAMAGE DEPOSIT 7,554            11,079          3,416            -               -               -               8,850            9,000               9,000 Need to move back to gen. op.

Total Damage Deposit 7,554            11,079          3,416            -               -               -               8,850            #DIV/0! 9,000               #DIV/0! 9,000            
Total General Gov't 426,758        473,140        477,369        470,784        493,245        522,563        398,155        76% 545,605           4% 23,042          

Public Safety
100-42000-437 Other Misc PUBSAFTY 20                 100                  100 Transient/Peddlers Background Checks

Total Other Misc -               -               -               -               -               -               20                 #DIV/0! 100                  #DIV/0! 100               
100-42101-310 Other Professional Services HC SHERIFF 75,078          69,333          71,405          78,731          81,096          82,716          41,358          84,368             1,652 contract price

Total HC Sheriff 75,078          69,333          71,405          78,731          81,096          82,716          41,358          50% 84,368             2% 1,652            
100-42102-310 Other Professional Services WC SHERIFF 83,726          95,900          99,168          105,708        110,171        108,770        92,395          114,558           5,788 contract price

Total WC Sheriff 83,726          95,900          99,168          105,708        110,171        108,770        92,395          85% 114,558           5% 5,788            
100-42210-103 Part-Time Wages FIRE ADMIN 28,116          27,804          31,640          47,144          65,365          61,000          23,101          70,600             9,600
100-42210-122 FICA FIRE ADMIN 1,743            1,714            1,943            1,483            3,271            3,782            3,635            4,377               595
100-42210-123 Medicare FIRE ADMIN 408               401               454               347               765               885               850               1,024               139
100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefits FIRE ADMIN -               22                                 -  275               168               300               -               300                  0
100-42210-150 Workers Comp Premium FIRE ADMIN 6,679            7,137            7,947            8,225            8,398            9,000            8,543            9,000               0 estimate

91



100-42210-200 Office Supplies FIRE ADMIN 167               131               241               560               -               350               846               350                  0
100-42210-305 Medical/Physical Fees FIRE ADMIN 1,260            4,735            4,567            2,644            2,497            4,000            -               4,000               0
100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions FIRE ADMIN 562               572               605               1,889            989               1,500            917               1,000               (500)
100-42210-361 General Liability Insurance FIRE ADMIN 5,869            2,370            4,743            5,248            3,973            5,000            3,548            5,000               0 estimate

Total Fire Admin 45,975          45,125          52,140          67,816          85,426          85,817          41,439          48% 95,651             11% 9,834            
100-42220-221 Equipment Parts FIRE EQUIP 6,025            1,056            2,791            6,579            4,850            15,500          1,118            11,500             (4,000)
100-42220-228 Medical Supplies FIRE EQUIP -               782               370               -               1,170            1,500            1,331            1,500               0
100-42220-240 Small Tools/Equipment FIRE EQUIP 132               -               537               -               397               1,000            -               1,000               0
100-42220-260 Uniforms FIRE EQUIP 780               10,864          7,559            12,699          16,285          28,500          3,098            28,500             0
100-42220-580 Other Equipment FIRE EQUIP 2,056            856               1,081            730               5,081            5,000            3,799            5,000               0

Total Fire Equip 8,993            13,557          12,338          20,009          27,783          51,500          9,345            18% 47,500             -8% (4,000)          
100-42240-208 Training & Instruction FIRE TRG 7,517            8,869            4,162            6,078            4,869            12,500          6,592            7,500               (5,000)
100-42240-310 Other Professional Services FIRE TRG -               2,939            3,055            3,168            3,210            2,413            3,380               170 Contracted Renewal Cost
100-42240-331 Travel Expenses FIRE TRG 852               792               2,137            3,754            1,397            1,500            294               1,500               0

Total Fire Trg 8,369            9,661            9,238            12,886          9,434            17,210          9,298            54% 12,380             -28% (4,830)          
100-42260-212 Motor Fuels FIRE VEHICLE 3,780            3,146            2,362            2,302            3,164            4,500            1,749            3,000               (1,500)
100-42260-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply FIRE VEHICLE 14,342          7,855            11,402          9,144            3,954            9,000            727               9,000               0
100-42260-240 Small Tools/Equipment FIRE VEHICLE 1,860            198               322               25                 169               1,000            -               1,000               0
100-42260-323 Radio Units FIRE VEHICLE 2,661            5,035            8,481            3,439            11,145          7,805            5,795            7,800               (5)

Total Fire Vehicle 22,643          16,235          22,567          14,911          18,432          22,305          8,271            37% 20,800             -7% (1,505)          
100-42280-215 Shop Supplies FIRE BLDG 741               189               416               177               617               1,650            71                 800                  (850)
100-42280-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply FIRE BLDG 522               14,969          2,827            1,364            9,717            7,500            1,790            7,500               0
100-42280-321 Telephone FIRE BLDG 430               351               371               1,857            1,050            1,000            792               1,000               0
100-42280-325 Taxes FIRE BLDG -               -               -               -               -               -               -                   0
100-42280-381 Electric Utilities FIRE BLDG 3,722            3,636            3,861            3,859            4,178            4,500            2,600            4,500               0
100-42280-383 Gas Utilities FIRE BLDG 3,673            2,855            1,935            2,298            3,369            3,000            2,122            3,500               500
100-42280-520 Buildings & Structures FIRE BLDG 932               -               -               -                   0

Total Fire Bldg 9,088            21,999          9,410            9,555            19,864          17,650          7,373            42% 17,300             -2% (350)             
100-42290-124 State Aid Pensions FRA 37,871          42,415          38,746          37,428          39,020          39,000          41,187          39,000             0 pass through fund
100-42290-125 Other Retirement Contributions FRA -               11,134          11,134          12,011          11,602          5,801            12,096             494 31% of two year's prior state aid amount
100-42290-301 Auditing & Accounting FRA 5,800            6,580            6,100            6,200            6,250            6,250            6,250            6,250               0 billed hourly, this is estimated amount

Total FRA 43,671          48,995          55,980          54,762          57,281          56,852          53,238          94% 57,346             1% 494               
100-42401-310 Other Professional Services BLDG INSP 32,860          53,391          54,669          39,212          38,238          50,000          26,282          40,000             (10,000)

Total Bldg Insp 32,860          53,391          54,669          39,212          38,238          50,000          26,282          53% 40,000             -20% (10,000)        
100-42700-310 Other Professional Services ANIMAL CTRL 180               185               250               577               1,070            1,000            457               1,000               0

Total Animal Ctrl 180               185               250               577               1,070            1,000            457               46% 1,000               0% -               
100-42800-310 Other Professional Services CEMETERY -               50                 2,174            -               -               -               -               0

Total Cemetery -               50                 2,174            -               -               -               -               #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -               
Total Public Safety 330,584        374,432        389,338        404,167        448,795        493,820        289,457        59% 490,903           -1% (2,917)          

Public Works
100-43000-101 Full-Time Wages - Reg PUBLIC WORKS 74,389          98,608          107,097        111,190        150,035        138,997        122,948        146,116           7,119 3 FTE - with $25k paid from Storm H2O 
100-43000-102 Full-Time Wages - OT PUBLIC WORKS 1,340            604               1,386            526               701               2,000            1,064            2,000               0
100-43000-103 Part-Time Wages PUBLIC WORKS 14,370          5,170            13,080          11,292          11,811          14,580          12,154          28,360             13,780 2 Summer help and 1 temp. snow plow driver
100-43000-121 PERA PUBLIC WORKS 5,168            7,730            8,095            8,059            11,248          12,300          9,647            12,834             534
100-43000-122 FICA PUBLIC WORKS 5,688            6,637            7,482            7,411            9,649            11,072          8,444            11,775             703
100-43000-123 Medicare PUBLIC WORKS 1,274            1,552            1,750            1,733            2,257            2,589            1,975            2,892               303
100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life PUBLIC WORKS 1,107            1,729            1,862            1,374            2,390            2,535            1,199            1,548               (987) estimate: Life + LTD/STD
100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefits PUBLIC WORKS 369               264               28                 1,865            7,058            -               -               -                   0
100-43000-151 Health Insurance Premiums PUBLIC WORKS 10,892          15,616          19,200          20,701          31,625          32,400          26,555          32,400             0 2 family & 1 single
100-43000-208 Training & Instruction PUBLIC WORKS 225               997               1,379            166               2,456            2,500            2,025            3,500               1,000
100-43000-212 Motor Fuels PUBLIC WORKS 8,790            -               5,218            5,085            11,874          7,000            8,246            10,000             3,000
100-43000-215 Shop Supplies PUBLIC WORKS 3,569            -               2,658            3,524            7,989            7,500            2,756            7,500               0
100-43000-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply PUBLIC WORKS 8,726            378               11,725          7,134            15,044          12,000          4,636            12,000             0
100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials PUBLIC WORKS -               1,252            943               377               1,500            577               1,500               0
100-43000-240 Small Tools/Equipment PUBLIC WORKS 4,432            -               2,576            6,505            3,925            5,000            3,361            10,000             5,000 Budgeting $5K for 1 Bobcat/Excav. attachment
100-43000-260 Uniforms PUBLIC WORKS 1,974            -               1,316            2,225            2,266            3,000            2,303            3,000               0

92



100-43000-310 Other Professional Services PUBLIC WORKS 5,174            -               18,696          13,075          5,455            10,000          4,627            7,500               (2,500) Compost contract & fire system monitoring
100-43000-321 Telephone PUBLIC WORKS 555               1,929            1,880            2,820            3,185            4,200            4,789            4,200               0 Cell Phones, Comcast Internet/Phones
100-43000-325 Taxes PUBLIC WORKS 119               120               38                 118               200               20                 200                  0
100-43000-381 Electric Utilities PUBLIC WORKS 6,000            3,134            4,000               (2,000)
100-43000-383 Gas Utilities PUBLIC WORKS 5,000            3,783            7,000               2,000

Buildings & Structures PUBLIC WORKS 2,000               New line item for new facility
Total Public Works 155,840        152,107        206,800        205,666        279,465        280,373        224,242        80% 308,325           10% 27,952          

100-43121-224 Street Maintenance Materials PAVED STREETS 13,661          71,522          32,250          16,992          7,750            100,000        35,210          50,000             (50,000) Removed chip seal funding
Total Paved Streets 14,625          75,755          32,250          16,992          7,750            100,000        35,210          35% 50,000             -50% (50,000)        

100-43122-224 Street Maintenance Materials UNPAVED STREETS 7,094            10,403          11,179          12,639          6,505            15,000          6,488            15,000             0
Total Unpaved Streets 7,094            10,403          11,179          12,639          6,505            15,000          6,488            43% 15,000             0% -               

100-43125-224 Street Maintenance Materials SNOW/ICE 11,926          15,000          9,453            19,171          15,988          20,000          4,573            20,000             0
Total Snow/Ice 11,926          15,000          9,453            19,171          15,988          20,000          4,573            23% 20,000             0% -               

100-43160-381 Electric Utilities STREET LIGHTS 25,125          19,475          26,424          23,876          24,046          25,000          16,643          25,000             0
Total Street Lights 25,125          19,475          26,424          23,876          24,046          25,000          16,643          67% 25,000             0% -               

100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Disposal CITY CLEAN UP 887               1,784            2,073            -               3,448            1,000            2,675            3,000               2,000 offset by disposal revenue
Total City Clean Up 887               1,784            2,073            -               3,448            1,000            2,675            267% 3,000               200% 2,000            

100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Disposal RECYCLING 33,931          36,112          37,745          38,298          40,446          40,000          31,168          44,000             4,000 residential recycling service addt. houses
Total Recycling 33,931          36,112          37,745          38,298          40,446          40,000          31,168          78% 44,000             10% 4,000            

Total Public Works 249,428        341,883        325,925        316,643        377,647        481,373        320,999        67% 465,325           -3% (16,048)        

Culture & Recreation
100-45186-437 Senior Center Contribution SENIOR CENTER 7,654            5,330            7,016            7,905            8,140            8,700            6,524            9,100               400 provided by St. Michael

Total Senior Center Contribution 7,654            5,330            7,016            7,905            8,140            8,700            6,524            75% 9,100               5% 400               
100-45200-212 Motor Fuels PARKS 1,958            -               1,478            1,214            1,933            2,000            1,861            2,000               0 lawn mower fuel
100-45200-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply PARKS 4,477            4,513            4,599            3,428            5,642            5,000            6,061            6,000               1,000 mower repairs, park maintenance equipment
100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials PARKS 1,788            2,625            4,356            4,638            3,701            8,000            3,392            8,000               0 wood chips, seed, soil, fertilizer, etc.
100-45200-310 Other Professional Services PARKS -               6,280            6,500            6,800            7,000            7,000            7,200               200 FYCC Costs
100-45200-381 Electric Utilities PARKS 1,932            2,054            2,265            2,981            2,071            2,200            1,306            2,200               0
100-45200-400 Repairs & Maintenance Contract PARKS 4,469            2,249            1,939            112               -               1,500            -               -                   (1,500)
100-45200-440 Programs PARKS 4,992            9,041            2,216            1,945            2,529            3,000            865               3,000               0 city hosted events
100-45200-580 Other Equipment PARKS 2,711            7,190            7,606            4,070            4,188            8,000            5,090            8,000               0 Porta Potty Cleaning, replace old Biff's

Total Parks 22,610          27,852          30,739          24,887          26,865          36,700          25,575          70% 36,400             -1% (300)             
100-45500-437 Contribution & Operation ROY SIMMS LIBRARY 7,000            5,250            10,428          11,240          10,638          11,500          10,299          11,600             100 $7K bond plus $4,600 operation

Total Roy Simms Library 7,000            5,250            10,428          11,240          10,638          11,500          10,299          90% 11,600             1% 100               
Total Culture & Rec 37,264          38,432          48,183          44,032          45,643          56,900          42,398          75% 57,100             0% 200               

Transfers Out
100-49360-700 Transfer Out GENERAL CAPITAL 100,000        250,000        -               -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out PARKS CAPITAL -               148,570        -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out FIRE DEPT CAPITAL 20,000          52,300          31,000          74,151          45,814          -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out HISTORICAL FUND 10,000          -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out CITY HALL FUND 30,000          74,093          -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out EQUIPMENT FUND 32,500          55,000          -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out STREET CAPITAL 100,000        369,000        150,000        -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense

Total Transfers Out 292,500        476,300        503,663        224,151        45,814          -               -               #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -               

Transit
100-49800-310 Other Professional Services TRANSIT 1,107            250               187               489               -               -               -                   0

Total Transit 1,107            -               250               187               489               -               -               #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -               

Total Fund Expend. 1,337,641     1,704,187     1,744,728     1,459,964     1,411,633     1,554,656     1,051,010     68% 1,558,932        0% 4,276            

Total Revenue Over Expenditures 373,087        (125,848)      (318,698)      58,456          106,787        (2)                 (88,607)        4430370% (0)                     -78% (4,276)          

93



2020 Estimated Market Values
City of Corcoran 24.57%

City of Greenfield 17.14%
City of Hanover 45.54%

Rockford Township 12.75%
100.00%

Total Calls by Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Total Average
City of Corcoran 34 34 50 43 44 205 41 22.88%

City of Greenfield 12 12 42 24 19 109 21.8 12.17%
City of Hanover 73 73 103 82 138 469 93.8 52.34%

Rockford Township 28 28 22 13 22 113 22.6 12.61%
147 147 217 162 223 896 179.2 100.00%

2020 Budget: 310,976.90 Total Budgeted Expenditures (General Fund, Bonds, Capital Transfer)
(39,000.00) State FRA Pension Contribution

$271,976.90 Amount to be allocated

Payment from City is based on dividing the budget in half and then determining costs based on Market Value and Total Calls.
MV % MV Pymt. CH % CH Pymt. Payment

City of Corcoran 24.57% 33,418.13 22.88% 31,113.43 64,531.56
City of Greenfield 17.14% 23,307.70 12.17% 16,543.24 39,850.94
City of Hanover 45.54% 61,925.90 52.34% 71,181.45 133,107.35
Rockford Township 12.75% 17,336.72 12.61% 17,150.33 34,487.05

100.00% 135,988.45 100.00% 135,988.45 271,976.90
135,988.45 135,988.45

2019 Payment Per City: 2020 Payment Per City: % Change
City of Corcoran $65,306.31 City of Corcoran $64,531.56 -1%
City of Greenfield $40,631.65 City of Greenfield $39,850.94 -2%
City of Hanover $130,281.27 City of Hanover $133,107.35 2%
Rockford Township $36,114.27 Rockford Township $34,487.05 -5%

$272,333.50 $271,976.90

Fire Department Cost for Services Calculation

$90,181,600

$448,689,900

TOTAL
$211,203,200
$147,305,100

HC
$211,203,200

WC

$147,305,100

$859,449,500$410,759,600

$301,191,200
$109,568,400

$391,372,800
$109,568,400

94



Fund 
No. Account Description

2014 
Actual

2015 
Actual

2016 
Actual

2017 
Actual

2018 
Actual

2019 
Budget

2020 
Budget

%  
Change Comments

401 General 100,000  
402 Parks 25,000    25,000    25,000    25,000    
403 Fire Department 20,000    24,000    30,000    104,151  60,000    101,045  60,000    approx. 50% pd by contract entities
404 Historical Projects 10,000    
407 TIF Redev. Dist #1
408 8th St. Project
411 Facilities 30,000     -           
417 Equipment 32,500     55,000     65,000     52,348     15,000     20,000     50,000     
418 Street Project 100,000  190,000  215,000  310,000  152,880  169,806  275,000  

Total Revenue 292,500  269,000  310,000  491,499  252,880  315,851  410,000  83%

Capital Improvement Fund Levy Revenue

95



Acct No. Account Description
2014 

Actual
2015 

Actual
2016 

Actual
2017 

Actual
2018 

Actual
2019 

Budget
2020 

Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
311-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 40,934 39,770 38,604 42,688 41,256 39,821 43,638
311-33410 MV CREDIT
311-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 50 400 344 688 827 0 600
311-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 413 (92) 289 (284) 35 0 0
311-39100 BOND PROCEEDS
311-39200 TRANSFERS IN

Total Revenue 41,397 40,079 39,238 43,092 42,119 39,821 44,238 10%

Expenditure Accounts
311-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 70,000 25,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 35,000 35,000
311-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 11,030 9,448 8,338 7,320 6,210 4,973 3,607
311-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 495 495 425 495 495 495 495

Total Expenditures 81,525 34,943 38,763 37,815 36,705 40,468 39,102 -2%

Total Revenue Over Expenditure (40,128) 5,136 475 5,277 5,414 (646) 5,136 -112%

*Last payment made in 2022

City of Hanover

2008A GO CIP Refunding Bond Fund

Debt Services

96



Acct No. Account Description
2014 

Actual
2015 

Actual
2016 

Actual
2017 

Actual
2018 

Actual
2019 

Budget
2020 

Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
314-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 74,174 110,246 125,400 124,490 134,080 132,803 136,146
314-33410 MV CREDIT
314-36100 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 93,196 71,146 62,387 43,450 41,318 35,000
314-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 417 3,965 5,559 5,717 7,474 6,000
314-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 4,553 (299) (270) (2,168) (2,777) (2,000)
314-39100 BOND PROCEEDS
314-39200 TRANSFERS IN

Revenue Accounts 172,341 185,058 193,076 171,489 180,096 132,803 175,146 -11%

Expenditure Accounts
314-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 125000 125,000 140,000 140,000 150,000 150,000 155,000
314-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 25,775 23,275 20,775 17,975 15,175 12,025 8,275
314-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 495 495 495 495 495 495 495

BALANCING (Fund 309 residuals)
Total Expenditures 151,270 148,770 161,270 158,470 165,670 162,520 163,770 -2%

Total Revenue Over Expenditure 21,071       36,288 31,806 13,019 14,426 (29,717) 11,376 -59%

*Last payment made in 2021

2011 GO Improvement Crossover Refunding Bond Fund

City of Hanover
Debt Services

97



Acct No. Account Description
2014 

Actual
2015 

Actual
2016 

Budget
2017 

Actual
2018 

Actual
2019 

Budget
2020 

Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
315-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 110,036 105,236 109,636 108,510
315-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 358 581 450
315-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS (175) 115 0
315-39100 BOND PROCEEDS
315-39200 TRANSFERS IN

Revenue Accounts -            -            -$              110,219$   105,932$   109,636$   108,960$   #DIV/0!

Expenditure Accounts
315-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 0 60,000 60,000 65,000
315-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 24,249 40,630 39,820 38,879
315-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 0 495 495

Total Expenditures -$              -$              -$              24,249$     100,630$   100,315$   104,374$   #DIV/0!

Total Revenue Over Expenditure -            -            -$              85,970$     5,302$       9,321$       4,586$       #DIV/0!

City of Hanover

City of Hanover
Debt Services

2016 GO Public Works Building Bond

98



Acct No. Account Description
2014 

Actual
2015 

Actual
2016 

Actual
 2017 

Actual 
 2018 

Actual 
 2019 

Budget 
 2020 

Budget 
%  

Change

Expenditure Accounts
602-47000-601 PRINCIPAL 95,000 98,000       100,000     102,000     95,000       
602-47000-611 INTEREST 12,463 11,221 9,046         6,801         4,511         2,176         

Total Expenditures 12,463 106,221 107,046     106,801     106,511     97,176       1%

*last payment made in 2020

196,176     306,254     327,580     409,806     409,814     404,421     25%
150,016 164,004 277,214 280,572 282,260 288,293 2%

75,120 68,309 47,587 47,575 0 40,050 -100%
183,713     200,033     220,534     303,005     303,303     307,246     38%

principal 347,000     
Interest/Agent 62,814       

Total Debt Expenditures Paid by Levy

Minnesota PFA Loan

Debt Services

Total Debt Services Expenditures
Total Debt Services Tax Revenues

Total Debt Services Non-Tax Revenues

99



City of Hanover

Bond Issues
Original 
Principal Date Issued

Paid by Levy 
Dollars 
(Y/N)

Debt Levy per 
Issued Bond 
for Pay 2020

Reductions to 
Levied Amount

Certified Debt 
Levy 2020

GO Wastewater Treatment Note 
- Mn PFA $1,909,275 1999 N $0 $0.00 $0.00

GO Improvement Plan 
Refunding $660,000 2008 Y $43,638 $0.00 $43,638

GO Improvement Crossover 
Refunding $1,225,000 2011 Y $136,146 $0.00 $136,146

GO Bond Capital Improvement $1,535,000 2016 Y $108,510 $0.00 $108,510
Total $3,420,000 $288,294 $0.00 $288,294

FINAL LEVY CERTIFIED

Brian Hagen, City Administrator

I hereby certify that the above schedule of bond levies to be spread on payable 2020 tax rolls agrees with your records and is true and
correct.  Copies of any resolutions which increase or reduce these levies are attached.

Dated this ___th day of December, 2019.

Bond Register/Debt Levy Supplement

100



STATE of MINNESOTA Return by: December ____, 2019
COUNTY of WRIGHT City Taxes Voted
CITY OF HANOVER

To the Auditor of Wright County:  I hereby certify that the Council for the City of Hanover, Counties of Wright and Hennepin, Minnesota, did at  
a meeting on December ____, 2019 levy the following amount to be raised by taxation for the City of Hanover for the payable year 2020.

2020 Budget 
Requirement 2020 LGA

2020 Other 
Resources 2020 Tax Levy #  Fund

2020 Budget 
Requirement 2020 LGA

2020 Other 
Resources

2020 Certified 
Levy

1,311,055      124,773         167,909         1,018,373      5 Rev 1,307,955      124,773         167,909         1,015,273      
250,977         39,000           107,573         104,404         7 Fire Prot. 250,977         39,000           107,573         104,404         
307,246         18,952           288,293         19 Debt Services 307,246         18,952           288,293         
410,000         31,297           378,703         26 Capital Improv. 410,000         31,297           378,703         

2,132,763 163,773 328,504 1,789,774 Total 2,276,178      163,773         325,731         1,786,674      

Dated this ____th day of December, 2019.

FINAL LEVY CERTIFIED

2020 Preliminary 2020 Final

Brian Hagen, City Administrator

101



Preliminary Levy Certification 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Tax Capacity:
Capacity 3,282,608 3,076,226 2,808,041 2,547,684 2,367,113 2,385,758 2,644,071 2,850,350 3,002,592 3,347,361 3,637,226 3,853,739 HC
Levy 1,277,851 1,277,851 1,270,270 1,268,303 1,268,286 1,268,280 1,308,954 1,410,972 1,486,286 1,544,804 1,647,006 1,786,674 WC
Rate 38.93% 41.54% 45.24% 49.78% 53.58% 53.16% 49.51% 49.50% 49.50% 46.15% 45.28% 46.36%

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Capacity Levy Rate

102


	ADP83E9.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  November 14, 2019
	Re:  Review of November 19, 2019 City Council Work Session Agenda

	11-19-19 Claims.pdf
	11-19-19 Payments
	11-19-19 Check Summary Register
	11-19-19 Cons
	11-19-19 Cash Balance
	11-19-19 Revenue Budget by Service
	11-19-19 Expenditure Budget by Service

	Fee Schedule 2020 DRAFT 1.pdf
	Sheet1

	2020 Final Budget - DRAFT 1.pdf
	Gen. Fund Rev.
	Gen. Fund Exp.
	FD Contract
	Capital Improv. Levy
	Debt Service
	Bond Levy
	City Levy
	Tax Rate

	ADPBAB5.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  November 14, 2019
	Re:  Review of November 19, 2019 City Council Work Session Agenda




